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Dear Shareholder:

Inside, you will find the year 2004 Annual Report for Smith Micro
Software, Inc. (Nasdaq: SMSI). During 2004 we saw a dramatic turnaround
in our fundamental business as we strongly grew our wireless software
business and maintained our leadership position as the largest suppler of
data connectivity software in the wireless sector.

As Verizon Wireless began their high-speed EVDO data service rollout in
late 2004 we were able to build upon the momentum we started in 2003 as
the leading provider of wireless connectivity software. During 2004 we
increased revenues 85% to $13.3 million and finished the year with net
income of $2.9 million or $0.19 per fully diluted share. As you can imagine,
we are very pleased with our 2004 results.

In 2004 we announced several exciting business events that helped contribute to our 2004 results.
Our most significant announcements occurred in our Wireless & OEM Sales group, with Verizon
Wireless choosing our software to exclusively support its new VZAccess Manager for its high-
speed BroadbandAccess product. We continue to work very closely with Verizon Wireless as a
partner, and look forward to expanding our relationship as they continue their aggressive rollout of
their broadband wireless services in 2005.

As many of you know, Verizon Wireless is still in the very early stages of its wireless
BroadbandAccess, or EV-DO, data service rollout, offering service in only 16 cities during the last
half of 2004. Despite the limited rollout and the short time span that this service has been available
to consumers, Smith Micro experienced significant growth on both the top and bottom line in 2004
as a result of Verizon Wireless standardizing on our wireless data connectivity solution.

Moving forward, Verizon Wireless has continued to rollout its wireless BroadbandAccess data
service at a fast pace, adding 14 more cities in the first month of 2005. This was welcome news and
will continue to be an important factor for Smith Micro. Verizon has stated that they intend to
announce additional markets throughout the rest of 2005 giving BroadbandAccess a national
coverage reach of over 150 million people. As you can imagine, being the sole source of their data
connectivity software, we are very excited about Verizon Wireless’ actions, and confident that they
are committed to rolling out this product.

Verizon Wireless has of course been a strong contributor to our recent success, and we do not
anticipate that to change. They are not only a good customer but they are also a great partner.
Everyone at Verizon Wireless works very well with our team, which results in a quality product and
excellent service for the consumer. However, in addition to Verizon Wireless, all of our other Smith
Micro wireless customers have been equally as helpful in making our business successful, and we
are excited about the opportunities that lie ahead with each of these carriers in 2005.
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In 2004 Smith Micro was chosen by Dobson Communications to provide data connectivity kits for
their next-generation wireless products. With QuickLink Mobile, Dobson’s customers will be able
to leverage the full potential of Dobson’s high-speed network and surrounding Wi-Fi hotspots.
Additionally, in early 2005 ALLTEL chose Smith Micro’s QuickLink Mobile wireless data
connectivity solution to support its high-speed data customers.

High-speed wireless data services overall are very early on in their deployment and we expect it to
be a strong emerging market. Our business arrangements with Verizon Wireless, the leading
wireless data carrier in North America and now ALLTEL, are great endorsements for Smith Micro
as we attempt to add new carriers and continue to grow revenue, and our bottom line. As our carrier
customers succeed in selling high-speed data services, Smith Micro succeeds because their
subscribers need either a data connectivity kit, or a PC Card to use this service, and both include our
software.

We continue to show consistent revenue in our Internet Software and Services area. During 2004
we signed a license agreement with Symantec. They include our CheckIt® Diagnostics with their
Norton System Works 2005. We also announced the availability of a network version of our
popular FAXstf™ Server solution for the Mac. We also released the latest version of our consumer
fax product HotFax® MessageCenter and finally started shipping the Smith Micro Wi-Fi Seeker
which has been a widely received Wi-Fi hot spot identifier.

Looking beyond our carrier customer opportunity, we announced in 2004 the development of
QuickLink Mobile for the Enterprise. We believe that our enterprise solution will have a significant
competitive edge, as we are experts in connecting to several different service providers and handsets
using the same software solution. Selling into the enterprise market is a longer sales cycle, but we
continue to expect enterprise revenues starting in the later part of 2005 and ramping up in 2006.

So as you can see, we were very busy last year and added some exciting new products, technology
and customers to help us continue to move forward in 2005 especially in the wireless sector. | invite
you to examine the attached Annual Report (Form 10-K) for a detailed analysis of our performance
in 2004, and I have confidence in our ability to deliver shareholder value in 2005. I also invite you
to examine our products on our Web site at www.smithmicro.com/products. Thank you for your
continued support.

Sincerely,

William W. Smith, Jr.
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
In this document, the terms “Smith Micro,” “Compahi{we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Smith Micro Software, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

This report contains forward-looking statementsaieting Smith Micro which include, but are not liegtto, statements concerning
projected revenues, expenses, gross profit andrecthe competitive factors affecting our businesgket acceptance of products, custo
concentration, the success and timing of new proutioductions, the protection of our intellectyaioperty, and the need for additional
capital. These forward-looking statements are bamedur current expectations, estimates and prajestabout our industry, management’s
beliefs, and certain assumptions made by us. W&rdls as “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plang “predicts,” “potential,”

“believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “should,” “may,” “will” and variations of these words or similar exgssions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements aislude the assumptions underlying or relatingy of the foregoing
statements. These statements are not guarantdéetsid performance and are subject to risks, uraaties and assumptions that are diffic
to predict. Therefore, our actual results couldelifmaterially and adversely from those expresgeghly forward-looking statements as a
result of various factors. Such factors includet, éne not limited to the following:

. our ability to predict consumer needs, introducevmpeoducts, gain broad market acceptance for suchkipcts and ramp up
manufacturing in a timely manne

. the intensity of the competition and our abilitysteccessfully compet

. the pace at which the market for new products gyt

. the response of competitors, many of whom are bigige better financed than u

. our ability to successfully execute our busineas pind control costs and expens

. our ability to protect our intellectual property drour ability to not infringe on the rights of otise
. our depressed market capitalization; &

. those additional factors which are listed under sleetion” Risk Factor” on page 19 of this repot

All forward looking statements included in this doeent are based on information available to ushendate hereof. We do not undertake
any obligation to revise or update publicly anyviard-looking statements for any reason.
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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS
General

Smith Micro Software, Inc. is a diversifiedvééoper and marketer of wireless communicatiorvgafé products and services. Our primary
focus and strategy for our products and servicdgésted to wireless communications including WWAsIwell as Wi-Fi software. We sell
our products and services to some of the worldiditegy companies as well as to consumers. Spedifedess products include: QuickLink
Mobile and QuickLink Mobile Phonebook. The prold&on of wireless technologies is providing new appnities globally. The wireless
infrastructures being implemented, such as 1XRTHRG and 3G including EVDO and UMTS, offer wider thardth wireless data services.
This infrastructure combined with mobile platforswgh as the basic mobile phone, notebook compdgniges (“PCs”) and personal
communications devices (“PDA’s") provide opportigst for new communications software products. Que communications technology is
designed to address this emerging wireless datkanhar

We manufacture, market and sell value-addeel@ss connectivity products targeted to the oabéguipment manufacturers (“OEM”)
market, particularly wireless service providers amabile phone manufacturers, as well as diredi¢aconsumer. We offer software products
for Windows XP, Windows 2000, Windows Me, Window& ®Vindows CE, Pocket PC, Mac, Palm, Unix and Lioperating systems. The
underlying design concept is the long-standing Bildiicro criteria of “enhancing the out-of-box exjgerce” for the customer. Our custom
engineering services bring more than 20 years afiare and software experience, having shipped 4@enillion copies of products to
OEM'’s seeking to better market their products bgtiagl product features, customizing existing featwamd translating applications into
additional languages.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we annouhoer latest addition to the QuickLink family, nagn@®uickLink Mobile Enterprise aimed
the corporate marketplace to take advantage adehgnd for additional security built into the Epiése product. This product will ship in t
second quarter of 2005. QuickLink Mobile providesebook users with the ability to easily roam betwwiireless wide area networks
(“WWAN") and Wi-Fi hot spots. QuickLink Mobile alles users to seek out and select available hot aptitgir area. We currently maintain
OEM relationships with many wireless industry comipa including: Verizon Wireless, Telus, Audiov&GIC and, Kyocera. Smith Micro
also offers products in the PC Utility, Fax and siBass markets. Smith Micro’s complete line of patd are available through direct sales
and OEMs. Sales to Verizon Wireless amounted tocqipately 68.4% of the Company’s net revenue2fifi4. Sales to Verizon Wireless,
Cingular Wireless and Apple Computer amounted tm@pmately 27.0%, 10.7% and 10.2% of our net rexesfor 2003, respectively. Sales
to Verizon Wireless and Apple Computer amounteaporoximately 19.0% and 10.7% of our net revenne&002, respectively.

We also offer professional consulting serviteg help clients implement web-based projectseRtension of this activity includes the
offering of fulfillment services for customer wetoes.

We currently operate in two business segm@ntslucts and services. We do not separately adlam@erating expenses to these segments,
nor do we allocate specific assets to these segmenérefore, segment information reported incluatdg revenues and cost of revenues. See
Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateséntfinancial information related to our opergtsegments

Research and development expenses amoun$@detonillion, $2.5 million and $2.2 million for theears ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Our research and developex@enses consist primarily of personnel and eqeig costs required to conduct our
software development efforts. We remain focusetherdevelopment and expansion of our technologyicodarly our wireless, diagnostic,
utility and Internet software technologies.

Our business is primarily dependent upon thddwide demand for wireless communications and#selting requirements wireless data
connectivity to support this demand. During the thsee years, demand for these types of produstdlactuated dramatically, and there has
been a significant increase in price competitiothimiour industry.
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We were incorporated in California in Novemh8B83, and we reincorporated in Delaware in Jurgs 19ur principal executive offices ¢
located at 51 Columbia, Suite 200, Aliso Viejo, if@ahia 92656. Our telephone number is (949) 36Q6B&ur website address is
www.smithmicro.com We make our filings with the SEC available on ftneestor Relations page of our website. Informationtained on
our website is not part of this Annual Report omrd 0-K.

Industry Backgrounds

Wireless Industry —Fhe evolving types of wireless infrastructures gegmplemented, such as 1XRTT, GPRS and the eme8§ngffer
wider bandwidth data services. Wireless platfomtduide the basic cellular phone, personal computagces (PC’s) and personal
communications devices including PDA’s and handkelthe adoption of these new mobile and wirelesarmunications services provides
opportunities for new communications software paigu

Diagnostic/Utility Software IndustryDiagnostic and utility software products assistnie or corporate users, and hardware manufacturer
or service companies to identify and repair compsystem related errors and problems.

Computer Consulting IndustryA corporations information technology department generally eatds whether to design, build or sup)
computer applications internally or to contract soon all of this work to outside specialists wiglthnical expertise. Many corporations
choose to use outside consulting contractors fenitork in order to focus their resources on tleeire competencies and avoid the time and
expense required to train their own employees.é&Morts are focused on these outsourced serviagsc@ss-platform (Windows, Unix,
Linux and Macintosh) WebDNAJ product is targeted at this market.

Products and Services

The following is a list of the software prodsiand services we offer, as well as a brief dpgon of their principal features and functions:

Softwar e Products

QuickLink [0 Mobile Turns data capable wireless phones into wirelestems.

QuickLink O Mobile Enables users to be able to easily edit wirelessghooks on a PC computer and copy, email or

Phonebool PIM databases to the phone.

FAXstfO X & Enables users to exchange faxes and data fileg@rntbte modems, fax/modems, and fax macl

FAXstf O X Pro quickly and easily on the Mac OS X operating envinent.

HotFaxJ MessageCenter An integrated voice, fax and data communicatiotveafe program that lets users receive voice

And HotFaxO mail and exchange faxes and data files with remmidems, fax/modems, and fax machines
quickly and easily

WebDNADO Provides the tools necessary to develop a Welnsie@ eBusiness site supporting Windows, Mac,
Unix and Linux. Wireless WebDNA! is an additional function that can be added to & &/t
built using WebDNA™ that enables WAP capabilit

CheckltO Utilities Provides end-users the hardware information they ne evaluate, fine-tune and manage their
systems
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Services

Consulting Consulting services range from supporting our WeBDN product to complete website design
and installation consulting service

Hosting We maintain a network operations facility that isnitored 24 x 7 to ensure maximum uptime. We
offer a broad spectrum of bandwidth and servicéaoptto customers. We host customers on olr
servers or house their server at our locat

Fulfillment An extension of our eBusiness activity includeseorfdlfillment services for customer web stor

Sales and Marketing

Our products are available worldwide to custmsrthrough original equipment manufacturers. Vge akll products and product upgrades
over the Internet through our own web store at wsamithmicro.com

Our OEM market continues to evolve as we caito offer new communications products and OEAMspt new technologies and
software bundling techniques. Our OEM customerkidewireless service providers, wireless phoneufaturers and other PC related
equipment manufacturers. These manufacturers baodlsoftware products with their own products. Néee translated selected products
into as many as eighteen languages to allow our @&tfomers the flexibility of offering multi-langga products that meet the needs of their
worldwide markets.

The cycle from the placement of an OEM ordestipping is very short. OEM customers genergligrate under a just-itime system, ar
we typically ship our products as we receive ordarpercentage of our OEM revenue is derived frogalties accrued by customers that are
authorized to replicate or to preload our softwaneducts.

Our three largest OEM customers (Verizon Veése| Kyocera Wireless and Symantec in 2004), azidrisspective affiliates, in each year,
have accounted for 77.8% of our net revenue in 20049% of our net revenues in 2003 and 39.4% ohetirevenues in 2002. Our major
customers could reduce their orders of our prodad@vor of a competitor’'s product or for any atlheason. The loss of any of our major
OEM customers, decisions by a significant OEM comgoto substantially reduce purchases or our iitald collect receivables from these
customers could have a material adverse effectiobusiness.

We traditionally have relatively little backidor our OEM products at any given time, and weehiaot considered backlog to be a
significant indicator of future performance. Aslécember 31, 2004, however, we had reported a bgcil$1 million resulting from orders
placed late in the fourth quarter but not shipg&dce we generally do not produce software in adeari anticipated orders, our revenues in
any quarter are substantially dependent on ordmykdal in that quarter.

We sell product directly to retail customddsiring the period 2002 through 2004, the retaildoic sales mix has changed as the result of
reduced emphasis on the retail channel and a rehfawas on our OEM and direct sales as we exitedlistribution channel.

Our consulting service group assists custommetleploying and using computer operating systepplications, and communications
products. This group is a part of our Internet &dot unit and helps create enterprise-wide comgugaiutions for large corporate accounts.
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Customer Service and Technical Support

We provide technical support and customerisehrough our web site, email, telephone and @M customers generally provide their
own primary customer support functions and relyusrior back-up support for their own technical suppersonnel.

Product Development

The software industry, particularly the wigdamarket, is characterized by rapid and frequieanges in technology and user needs. We
work closely with industry groups and customerghlmurrent and potential, to help us anticipatengiea in technology and determine future
customer needs. Software functionality depends tipercapabilities of the hardware. Accordingly, waintain engineering relationships w
various hardware manufacturers and we developaftware in tandem with their development. Our eergiting relationships with
manufacturers, as well as with our major customaes central to our product development efforts.réfeain focused on the development
expansion of our technology, particularly in theeleéss space. Research and development expenditomsited to $2.6 million, $2.5 millic
and $2.2 million for the years ended December 20083 and 2002, respectively.

Manufacturing

Our software is sold in several forms. We o#@ackage or kit that may include: CD-ROM(s)dooduct and hardware-specific drivers; a
cable; a manual; and certain other documentationasketing material. We offer software on CD-ROMé& also permit selected OEM
customers to duplicate our products on their owRREDM’s and pay a royalty based on usage. This nadetticale does not require us to
provide a CD or manual. Finally, we grant licensesertain OEM customers that enable those cuswtogireload a copy of our software
onto a personal computer’s hard drive. With thgooate sales program, we offer site licenses uwtiesh a corporate user is allowed to
distribute copies of the software to users withia torporate sites.

Our product development group produces a mtoghaster for each product that is then duplicatedi packaged into products by the
manufacturing organization. All product componearts purchased by our personnel in our Aliso Vi€jalifornia facility. The manufacturing
steps that are subcontracted to outside venddigdieithe replication of CD-ROM'’s and the printingdmcumentation materials. Assembly of
the final package is completed by an outside vendar our Aliso Viejo, California facility.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly getitive and subject to rapid changes in technal&gpidly changing technology combir
with relatively low barriers to entry in the comnicattion software market is constantly creating rgwortunities, and we expect new
competitors to enter the market. We also belieaé ¢cbmpetition from established and emerging saftveempanies will continue to intensify
as the emerging mobile, wireless and Internet niarkeolve. We compete with other software vendorste attention of customers as well
as in our efforts to acquire technology and quadifpersonnel.

We believe that the principal competitive tastaffecting the communication software markelude: product features, ease of use,
customization to customer-specific needs, produatity, price, customer service and effective sales$ marketing efforts. Although we
believe that our products currently compete favigralith respect to these factors, there can bessarance that we can maintain our
competitive position against current and potertimhpetitors. We believe that the market for outvsafe products has been and will continue
to be characterized by significant price competitid material reduction in the price of our producbuld negatively affect our profitability.
We face competition from Microsoft due to its marleminance and the fact that it is the publisifeéhe most prevalent personal computer
operating system, Windows. Microsoft representigaificant competitive threat to all personal cortgrsoftware vendors, including us.

Many existing and potential OEM customers hiaednological capabilities to develop productg tmampete directly with our products. In
such event, these customers may discontinue pusltdour products. Our future performance is sutiiglly dependent upon the extent to
which existing OEM customers elect to purchase
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communication software from us rather than desighdevelop their own software. Because our custemmer not contractually obligated to
purchase any of our products, they may ceaseypaoefail to expand their reliance on us as a sedior communication software in the
future.

Proprietary Rights and Licenses

Our success and ability to compete is depangmm our software code base, our programming adetiogies and other intellectual
properties. To protect our proprietary technologg,rely on a combination of trade secrets, nondggle and patent, copyright and trademark
law that may afford only limited protection. AsDécember 31, 2004, four currently effective U.Septs have been issued since
December 1997 and three patent applications arerdly pending. These patents provide generalizetbption to our intellectual property
base, and we will continue to apply for variousepés and trademarks in the future.

We seek to avoid disclosure of our intelletpraperty by requiring employees and consultarith @ccess to our proprietary information
to execute confidentiality agreements with us andeistricting access to our source code. The dhepisve have taken to protect our
proprietary technology may not be adequate to detesppropriation of our proprietary informationprevent the successful assertion of an
adverse claim to software utilized by us. In addifiwe may not be able to detect unauthorized tisardntellectual property rights or take
effective steps to enforce those rights.

In selling our products, we primarily rely tshrink wrap” licenses that are not signed by Igesgs and, therefore, may be unenforceable
under the laws of certain jurisdictions. In additithe laws of some foreign countries do not priodeic proprietary rights to as great an extent
as do the laws of the United States. Accordindilg,means we use currently to protect our propsietghts may not be adequate. Moreover,
our competitors may independently develop technobigilar to ours. We also license technology ara-exclusive basis from several
companies for inclusion in our products and anéitggthat we will continue to do so in the futufexé are unable to continue to license these
technologies or to license other necessary techgieddor inclusion in our products, or if we exgece substantial increases in royalty
payments under these third party licenses, ounkasicould be materially and adversely affected.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we had a total o§fifvo employees: twentgeven engaged in engineering; nine in sales ankietirag; eight ir
management and administration; four in customepstpand four in manufacturing. We utilize tempgriabor to assist during peak periods
of manufacturing volume. We believe that our futsuecess will depend in large part upon our comgnability to attract and retain highly
skilled managerial, sales, marketing, customer sttppesearch and development personnel and corssiaff. Like other software
companies, we face intense competition for suchqrerel, and we have at times experienced and cantinexperience difficulty in
recruiting qualified personnel. There can be naias®e that we will be successful in attractingjragating and retaining other qualified
personnel in the future. We are not subject toailective bargaining agreement and we believedbatelationships with our employees are
good.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters, including ourgipal administrative, sales and marketing, custosogport and research and development
facility, is located in Aliso Viejo, California, wdre we currently lease and occupy approximatelg@Bsquare feet of space pursuant to a
lease that expires May 31, 2009. We operate batipmaucts and services reporting segments withifacility.

We also have a facility of approximately 1,8@are feet in Lee’Summit, Missouri, pursuant to a lease that egpluteme 14, 2005. Duri
2003, we terminated leases in San Diego, Califean@Beaverton, Oregon.
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We believe that suitable additional or alt¢éineaspace will be available in the future on comeraly reasonable terms as needed.
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending material legal issuésiatime although we may become subject to variegal proceedings and claims that aris
the ordinary course of business.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no matters submitted to a voteawkfiolders during the quarter ended December 314.2

PART Il
ltem 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELAT ED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaqg $aplMarket under the symbol “SMSI.” The high ang kale prices for our common
stock as reported by Nasdaq are set forth belowhfoperiods indicated.

High Low

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200¢

First Quartel $ 3.6€ $ 2.0C
Second Quarte 3.31 1.8C
Third Quartel 5.5C 1.2¢
Fourth Quarte 11.2C 3.27
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200:

First Quarte! 0.7t 0.4z
Second Quarte 5.2: 0.4k
Third Quartel 4.87 2.5C
Fourth Quarte 4.0¢ 1.77

On February 25, 2005, the closing sale prcetir common stock as reported by Nasdag was $6.15
Holders

As of February 25, 2005, there were approxéyat 75 holders of record of our common stock basedhformation provided by our
transfer agent.

Dividends
We have never paid any cash dividends on anmaon stock and we have no current plans to do so.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On February 18, 2005, the Company enteredar@ommon Stock Purchase Agreement for the prpplaie=ment of 3,500,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value paice of $6.40 per share, resulting in aggregatsgcash proceeds to the Company of
$22,400,000 and approximate net cash proceedg tGdimpany of $21,056,000. The transaction closedlsneously with the execution of
the Purchase Agreement on February 18, 2005.

C.E. Unterberg, Towbin LLC, the placement ddenthe transaction, received a cash fee equa¥i®f the aggregate gross proceeds of
the Private Placement.
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ltem 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated finandata should be read in conjunction with “Managensebiscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and our cddatéd financial statements and the related nbegto appearing elsewhere in this
Annual Report. The following selected consolidattatement of operations data for the years endedreer 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and
the consolidated balance sheet data at Decemb&084,and 2003, have been derived from auditedatidiated financial statements incluc
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The consolidatattment of operations data presented below foyehes ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the consolidated balance sheet datacanflxer 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are derived frortealidonsolidated financial stateme
that are not included in this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except per share d

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Net Revenues

Products $12,39¢ $ 6,291 $ 6,02¢ $ 6,94¢ $10,88¢
Services 922 92E 1,102 2,544 2,59¢
Total Net Revenue 13,31¢ 7,21¢€ 7,131 9,48¢ 13,47¢
Cost of Revenue:
Products 2,53( 1,35( 1,42( 1,88( 2,49¢
Services 38C 321 782 2,04¢ $ 1,15(
Total Cost of Revenue 2,91( 1,671 2,202 3,92¢ 3,64¢
Gross profit 10,40¢ 5,54¢ 4,92¢ 5,561 9,83(
Operating expense
Selling and marketin 1,51¢ 1,66¢ 2,17¢ 4,571 5,31¢
Research and developmt 2,55¢ 2,50¢ 2,162 2,99 4,041
General and administrati\ 2,86¢ 2,33( 2,38 3,841 4,05:
Restructuring Cost 38C
Total operating expens 6,94: 6,502 6,724 11,79¢ 13,41
Operating income (los! 3,46: (957) (1,795 (6,239 (3,587
Interest Incomt 53 37 45 19¢ 482
Income (Loss) before income tax 3,51¢ (920 (2,750 (6,035 (3,107
Income tax expense (benel 71 3 (1,062) 90 54
Net Income (Loss $ 3,44f $ (929 $ (689 $ (6,125 $ (3,155
Net income (loss) per share, ba $ 0.2C $ (0.06) $ (0.09 $ (0.3%) $ (0.20
Weighted average shares, be 17,261 16,51° 16,23¢ 16,23: 15,98¢
Net income (loss) per share, fully dilut $ 0.1¢ $ (0.06) $ (0.09 $ (0.3%) $ (0.20)
Weighted average shares, fully dilus 18,41 16,51: 16,23¢ 16,23: 15,98¢
As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢
Total asset $ 12,82¢ $ 6,587 $ 6,76¢€ $ 9,257 $ 15,31
Total liabilities 1,72¢ 997 1,15¢ 2,95¢ 2,88
Accumulated defici (16,669 (20,114 (19,19) (18,509 (12,379
Total stockholder equity 11,09¢ 5,59( 5,612 6,302 12,427

11




Table of Contents
ltem 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Introduction and Overview

Our business model is based primarily upordésgn, production and sale of wireless conndgtaoftware for use with wireless
communication networks worldwide. Our products @rized with major wireless networks throughout thorld that support data
communications through the use of cell phonesterotvireless communication devices such as PC cdriisless network providers
generally incorporate our products into their asoeg products sold directly to individual consumiersffer wireless PC data connectivity to
their wireless networks.

Our business is primarily dependent upon #aahd for wireless communications and the corredipgrrequirements for wireless
connectivity software to support this demand. Dgitime last three years, demand for these typesodipts has fluctuated dramatically, and
there has been a significant increase in price etitign within our industry. These factors have tedwings in our revenues and contributed
to the operating losses reported in our finan@allts.

We continue to invest in research and devetyrof wireless software products, and we beliba¢ e have one the industry’s leading
wireless product lines in terms of performance feadures. We believe that our “out-of-the-box” desiechnology further differentiates our
products.

We also sell eBusiness and utility softward professional consulting services related to eftss applications.

During 2004, we have maintained a sharp f@rusur operating cost structure while ensuring #amaintain our operating flexibility to
support future growth in the industry. We measuiecsss by monitoring our net sales and gross meggid operating cash flow. We believe
that there continues to be excellent growth opputias within the wireless communications softwararketplace and we continue to focu
positioning Smith Micro to benefit from these opjpmities.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain condated statement of operating data as a percentagebrevenues for the periods indicated:
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Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net Revenues

Products 93.1% 87.2% 84.€%

Services 6.% 12.&8% 15.4%
Total net revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenues

Products 19.(% 18.7% 19.9%

Services 2.% 4.5% 11.(%
Total cost of revenue 21.% 23.2% 30.%
Gross profit 78.1% 76.8% 69.1%
Operating expense

Selling and marketin 11.4% 23.1% 30.5%

Research and developmt 19.2% 34.1% 30.2%

General and administratiy 21.5% 32.2% 33.5%
Total operating expens 52.1% 90.1% 94.2%
Operating Income (Los! 26.(% -13.2% -25.2%
Interest Incom: 0.4% 0.5% 0.€%
Income (Loss) before income tax 26.4% -12.8% -24.€%
Income tax expense (benel 0.5% 0.C% -15.(%
Net Income (Loss 25.% -12.8% -9.€%
Revenues

Total net revenues were $13.3 million, $7.2iam and $7.1 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, resjpvely, with an increase of $6.1 million,
or 84.5% from 2003 to 2004 and an increase of $85,0r 1.2%, from 2002 to 2003.

We currently operate in two business segm@ntslucts and services. In addition, product reesrare broken down into two business
units, Wireless and OEM and Internet & Direct Sa@sr Internet & Direct Sales unit includes utilapd fax software products as well as
consulting, fulfillment and hosting revenue.

The following table shows the net revenues@sl of revenues generated by each segment:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Products Services Products Services Products Services
Wireless & OEM $11,42¢ $ = $ 4,711 $ = $ 4,55t $ =
Internet & Direct 97C 922 1,58( 92t 1,47¢ 1,102
Total Revenue 12,39¢ 922 6,291 92t 6,02¢ 1,102
Cost of revenue 2,53( 38C 1,35(C 321 1,42 782
Gross Profil $ 9,86/ $ 54z $ 4,941 $ 604 $ 4,60¢ $ 32

Products.Net revenues from sales of products were $12.4amjl$6.3 million and $6.0 million for 2004, 2008ch2002, respectively,
representing an increase of $6.1 million, or 97f@8m 2003 to 2004 and $262,000 or 4.4% from 2002003. Product revenues accounted
for 93.1% of total revenues in 2004, 87.2% of to¢alenues
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in 2003 and 84.6% of total revenues in 2002. Ttangk in our product revenue from 2003 to 2004immgmily due to the increase in sales to
Verizon of $7.2 million consisting of sales of Qklitnk Mobile and QuickLink Mobile Phonebook. Int&tn& Direct Sales decreased,
reflecting the move out of the retail distributiohannel. Product revenues from 2002 to 2003, Wity flat, reflect a significant change
from core fax technology products to new wirelessmunications products for Wireless & OEM.

We traditionally have relatively little backjdor our OEM products at any given time and wechawst considered backlog to be a
significant indicator of future performance. Howevas our wireless business has evolved, productiole time for items such as data kits
has increased to the point that orders receivedrsvthe end of a quarter may not ship until thessguent quarter. Additionally, customers
may issue purchase orders that have extended detlages that may cause the shipment to fall imtsasquent quarter. Therefore, in 2004,
began tracking our quarterly backlog situationalitih the level of backlog is not necessarily intieaof trends in our business. As of
December 31, 2004 however, we had a backlog of $illion resulting from orders placed late in tloeifth quarter and not shipped. Since
generally do not produce software in advance atimatted orders our revenues in any quarter arstaobally dependent on orders booked in
that quarter.

ServicesConsulting services revenues were $922,000, $92500 $1.1 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respebti representing a
decrease of $3,000, or 0.3% from 2003 to 2004 aseteease of $177,000 or 16.1% from 2002 to 2068:i&s revenue accounted for 6.9%
of total revenues in 2004, 12.8% of total reverine)03 and 15.4% of total revenues in 2002. Trezedese in service revenue is due to the
reduced focus on consulting services, which wasamced in the first quarter of 2002, due to thee@se in demand for such services.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of Product Revenue€ost of product revenues was $2.5 million, $1ilion and $1.4 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, pestively,
representing an increase of $1.1 million, or 87.#%m 2003 to 2004 and remaining fairly constan2@®2 and 2003. The cost of product
revenue as a percentage of product revenue wa%20.2004, 21.5% in 2003 and 23.6% in 2002. Thd®/increase in 2004 is consistent
with the 2004 growth in product revenues of 97.@9,majority of which is primarily related to thecrease in sales to Verizon as indicated
above. During the period from 2002 through 2004,dbst of product revenue has moved from beingilye@tail product driven to primarily
wireless software kit related. Software kits ofeemtain a hardware element, such as a cable, whgtlt in slightly lower margins.

Cost of Service Revenu@&nst of service revenues was $380,000, $321,006a82,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
representing an increase of $59,000, or 18.4% 22668 to 2004 and a decrease of $461,000, or 59@% 2002 to 2003. Cost of service
revenues includes the cost of our consulting persiosnd the cost of any outside consultants cotetlaio support our staff. The increase in
the cost of service revenues from 2003 to 2004u¢std increased consulting labor costs and moaesdinare sales not present in 2003. The
decrease in the cost of service revenues from 892R03 was due to headcount reductions relatétetelimination of selected Microsoft
products consulting services announced in thediusiter of 2002. Cost of service revenues as@ptage of service revenues was 41.2% in
2004, 34.7% in 2003 and 71.0% in 2002.

Operating Expenses
The following table presents a breakdown afaperating expenses by functional category aral@ercentage of total net revenues:
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Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Operating expense
Selling and marketin $ 1,51¢ 11.% $ 1,66¢ 23.1% $ 2,17¢ 30.5%
Research and developmt 2,55¢ 19.2% 2,50¢ 34.1% 2,16: 30.2%
General and administrati\ 2,86¢ 21.5% 2,33( 32.% 2,38 33.5%
Total operating expens $ 6,948 52.1% $ 6,507 90.1% $ 6,72« 94.5%

Selling and MarketingSelling and marketing expenses were $1.5 millidn7 $nillion and $2.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002
respectively, representing decreases of $147,080866, from 2003 to 2004 and $509,000 or 23.4%nfR002 to 2003. Our selling and
marketing expenses consist primarily of personosts; advertising costs, sales commissions and show expenses. These expenses vary
significantly from quarter to quarter based ontthreng of trade shows and product introductionse Tecrease in these costs from 2003 to
2004 is directly attributable to the eliminationabfannel marketing expenses of approximately $D@0ahd the elimination of depreciation
and other miscellaneous expenses of $95,000 rglatithe San Diego sales office which was close2Did3. These decreases were offset by
an increase in salaries and related expenses ohapyately $50,000 which relates to the realloaatid resources from other departments to
sales and marketing. The decrease in these costs2002 to 2003 is directly attributable to stringeost reduction measures in all the above
expense areas as implemented by management 20@2e Advertising expenses were $47,000, $95,0a05ai6,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectivellin§eind marketing expenses were 11.4%, 23.1% arks¥3of revenues in the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respgctivetreases in selling and marketing expensegascantage of revenues were caused
by the increase in revenues as well as the absddliter decreases discussed above.

Research and DevelopmeResearch and development expenses were $2.6 m#$&os million and $2.2 million in 2004, 2003 ar@b2,
respectively, representing increases of $50,000,@%6 from 2003 to 2004 and $344,000, or 15.9%nfa®02 to 2003. Our research and
development expenses consist primarily of persoanelequipment costs required to conduct our soéwtavelopment efforts. We remain
focused on the development and expansion of otntdagy, particularly our wireless, diagnosticlititiand Internet software technologies.
The increase in our research and development egpémgach year was primarily due to the developrmenew wireless products that were
released during the periods, with an accompanyiogease in headcount and a refocus of engineezswurces from consulting projects to
development. Research and development expensed @@, 34.7% and 30.3% of revenues in the yeatsceBecember 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The decrease in reseactderelopment expenses as a percentage of reviooe2003 to 2004 is due to the
significant increase in revenues during the peridtk increase from 2002 to 2003 is primarily duéhtvabsolute dollar increase discussed
above, slightly offset by the small increase inerayes.

General and Administrativé&seneral and administrative expenses were $2.9mjl$2.3 million and $2.4 million in 2004, 2003 &2{@D2,
respectively, representing increases of $538,0023d.%, from 2003 to 2004 and $57,000, or 2.4%f@H02 to 2003. The increase in
General and Administrative costs from 2003 to 260dsist of increases in accounting, legal and déinguees of approximately $120,000,
travel expenses of approximately $65,000 and cosgiem and benefit costs of approximately $320,@heral and administrative costs in
2002 and 2003 were relatively flat as we reducesdscim align our general and administrative cosehaith existing revenues. General and
administrative expenses were 21.5%, 32.3% and 38fG%venues in the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2002, respectively. The
decrease in general and administrative expensepacentage of revenues from 2003 to 2004 isaltieetincrease in revenues, partially
offset by the absolute dollar increase in experiBes.decrease in general and administrative expeassa percentage of revenues from 2002
to 2003 is due to the increase in revenues andtibelute dollar decrease in expenses.

Interest Incomelnterest income was $53,000, $37,000 and $45,02004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, representing@aease of
$16,000, or 43.2% from 2003 to 2004 and a decreb$8,000 or 17.8%, from 2002 to
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2003. The differences in our interest income areatly related to the fluctuations in our cash baés during the periods and changing
interest rates. We have not changed our investsisategy during the periods being reported, withexcess cash consistently being invested
in short term marketable securities. (See “Liqyidihd Capital Resources” for further discussioewtsere in this report.)

Provision for Income Taxeb) the years ended December 31, 2004 and Decertb2083, we reported a provision for income taxes i
the amounts of $71,000 and $3,000, respectivelthdryear ended December 31, 2002, we reportedcamie tax benefit in the amount of
$1.1 million. The provision in 2004 relates to ati@ive minimum tax liability. The provision in 2B@onsists of minimum payments for state
taxes. The benefit in 2002 is the result of a petrating loss carry-back, which, pursuant to a ghédn federal tax law, allowed us to file for a
refund of income taxes paid in 1996. Prior to #relaw change such amount was included in the pertating loss carry-forward, which had
carried a full valuation allowance. We have prodidevaluation allowance on 100% of our deferredatssets. We will continue to evaluate
the recoverability of our deferred tax asset ardnbed for a valuation allowance against such .asaetors that are considered in the
evaluation of the recoverability of the deferrexl &@set are continued profitability and our abitdymeet our future forecasts. In general, any
realization of our net deferred tax asset will rielthe effective rate in future periods. HoweVieg, itealization of deferred tax assets that are
related to net operating losses that were genebatéaix deductions resulting from the exercisemf-gualified stock options, will result in a
direct increase to stockholders’ equity.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, we have financed our openatigrimarily through cash generated from operatarsfrom net proceeds of $18.1 million
generated by our initial public offering in 1995uiprincipal source of liquidity as of December 2004 consisted of cash and cash
equivalents of $8.6 million.

Net cash provided by operations was $3.0 onilin 2004 compared with cash used in operatioi®y 67,000 in 2003. This difference in
operating cash flows is primarily due to the inse@ net income in 2004. This was partially offsgincreases in accounts receivable.

Cash flows used in investing activities wet®2,000 in 2004 and $39,000 in 2003, related testments in property and equipment,
including computers and production equipment.

Cash flows from financing activities were $nillion in 2004 and $901,000 in 2003. This was rthgult of stock options being exercised
by employees, net of a tax adjustment in 2004 aisti ased to repurchase Company stock in the fiestey of 2003.

At December 31, 2004, we had $8.6 millionastt and cash equivalents and $9.2 million of waykiapital. We have no significant cap
commitments, and currently anticipate that cagitgdenditures will not vary significantly from redqreriods. We believe that our existing
cash, cash equivalent investment balances andloasfrom operations will be sufficient to financair working capital and capital
expenditure requirements through at least the mesltze months. We may require additional fundsupport our working capital
requirements or for other purposes and may seekige additional funds through public or privateiggor debt financing or from other
sources. If additional financing is needed, we camssure that such financing will be availablet@at commercially reasonable terms or at
all.

We have non-cancelable operating leases fofagilities in Aliso Viejo, California and Lee’susnmit, Missouri which expire in May 2009
and June 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2004, we had no debt andmpterm liabilities. The following table summaes our contractual obligations as of
December 31, 2004 (in thousands):
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Payments due by period

More than
Contractual obligations: Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 1,68¢ $ 38¢ $ 76C $ 53¢ $ —
Purchase Obligatior 62 62
Total $ 1,74¢ $ 45 $  76C $ 53 $ —

On February 18, 2005, we entered into a Com8tonk Purchase Agreement for the private placewied500,000 shares of our common
stock, $0.001 par value, at a price of $6.40 paresiresulting in aggregate gross cash proceetie t6ompany of $22,400,000 and
approximate net cash proceeds to the Company g0%2,00. The transaction closed simultaneouslly thié execution of the Purchase
Agreement on February 18, 2005. C.E. Unterberg,biiowlL C, the placement agent for the transactiengeived a cash fee equal to 6% of the
aggregate gross proceeds of the Private Placeemform of the Purchase Agreement was filed astixh0.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K which was filed on February 24, 2005

During our normal course of business, we hagde certain indemnities, commitments and guaranteder which we may be required to
make payments in relation to certain transactidhese include: intellectual property indemnitie®tw customers and licensees in connection
with the use, sale and/or license of our produntiemnities to various lessors in connection wattilfty leases for certain claims arising from
such facility or lease; indemnities to vendors aedvice providers pertaining to claims based om#wdigence or willful misconduct;
indemnities involving the accuracy of representatiand warranties in certain contracts; and indgesntio directors and officers of the
Company to the maximum extent permitted underdhes lof the State of Delaware. In addition, we haagle contractual commitments to
employees providing for severance payments upondberrence of certain prescribed events. We n&yiakue a guarantee in the form of a
standby letter of credit as security for contingétiilities under certain customer contracts. @iheation of these indemnities, commitments
and guarantees varies, and in certain cases, miagl&inite. The majority of these indemnities, acoitments and guarantees may not pro
for any limitation of the maximum potential for fwe payments we could be obligated to make. We hatescorded any liability for these
indemnities, commitments and guarantees in themapaaying consolidated balance sheets.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of results of apens, financial condition and liquidity are basgubn our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with act@uptinciples generally accepted in the United&taf America. The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to makeatts and judgments that affect the reported aramfrgssets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafrresvenues and expenses during the
reporting period. We base our estimates on histbexperience and on various other assumptionsatiedbelieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may materially diffem these estimates under different assumptio®iditions. On an on-going basis, we
review our estimates to ensure that the estimgeopriately reflect changes in our business or ilf@rmation as it becomes available.

We believe the following critical accountingligies affect our more significant estimates assuanptions used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements:

Revenue RecognitiorSoftware revenue is recognized in accordance thiélStatement of Position (“SOP”) 97Shftware Revenue
Recognitionas amended, when persuasive evidence of an arrangewists, delivery has occurred, the price ttesé fixed and
determinable, and collectibility is probable. Weagnize revenues from sales of our software to @kEbMomers or end users as: completed
products are shipped and title passes; or fromltiegagenerated as authorized customers duplicateadtware, if the other requirements of
SOP 97-2 are met. If the requirements of SOP 9 2iat met at the date of shipment, revenue isauutgnized until
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these elements are known or resolved. Returns @& customers are limited to defective goods ordgoshipped in error. Historically,
OEM customer returns have not exceeded the verynabdmstimates and reserves.

In 2003, we exited the retail distribution nhal. Prior to that time, we permitted resellertongers to return or exchange product and
provided price protection on products unsold byst@mer. As a result, revenue from resellers wesg®ized upon sell-through to the end
customer, rather than upon shipment. Product stiestly to end users are recognized upon delivieng users have a thirty day right of
return, but such returns have historically been atamal. We also provide technical support to aistemers. Such costs have historically
been insignificant.

Service revenues include sales of consultemgices, website hosting and fulfillment. We recagrservice revenues as services are
provided or as milestones are delivered and acddpt@®ur customers.

Accounts ReceivableWe sell our products worldwide. We perform ongodnedit evaluations of our customers and adjwedittimits
based upon payment history, the customer’s cunoreulit worthiness and various other factors, asrdghed by our review of their current
credit information. We continuously monitor collieets and payments from our customers. We estimatlitdosses and maintain a bad debt
reserve based upon these estimates. While such lasgsks have historically been within our estiedateserves, we cannot guarantee that we
will continue to experience the same credit logssghat we have in the past. If not, this couldehan adverse effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

Goodwill- We have adopted SFAS No. 1&hodwill and Other Intangible Assetffective January 1, 2002 and no impairment was
identified. As a result of the adoption, we ardarmer required to amortize goodwill. Prior to tioption of SFAS 142, goodwill was
amortized over 7 years. In accordance with SFASI¥@, we review the recoverability of the carryirgdue of goodwill at least annually or
whenever events or circumstances indicate a patemtpairment. Our annual impairment testing datBécember 31. Recoverability of
goodwill is determined by comparing the estimatgd alue of our reporting units to the carryindueaof the underlying net assets in the
reporting units. If the estimated fair value oeporting unit is determined to be less than theviaiue of its net assets, goodwill is deemed
impaired and an impairment loss is recognized gcetktent that the carrying value of goodwill excetite difference between the estimated
fair value of the reporting unit and the fair vahfdts other assets and liabilities. We determitied we did not have any impairment of
goodwill at December 31, 2004. Estimates of repgrtinit fair value are based upon market capittidimaand therefore are volatile being
sensitive to market fluctuations. To the extent tha market capitalization decreases significaatlhe allocation of value to our reporting
units changes, we could be required to write offiser all of our goodwill.

Deferred Income TaxesWe account for income taxes under SFAS No. A@8punting for Income Taxed his statement requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilif@sthe future consequences of events that have te@®gnized in our financial statements or
tax returns. The measurement of the deferred itefnased on enacted tax laws. In the event thedwionsequences of differences between
financial reporting bases and the tax bases ofssets and liabilities result in a deferred taes¥AS No. 109 requires an evaluation of the
probability of being able to realize the future efits indicated by such asset. A valuation allovearadated to a deferred tax asset is recorded
when it is more likely than not that some portioralh of the deferred tax asset will not be realizZé/e currently have a full valuation
allowance on our deferred tax assets. To the ektanit becomes more likely than not that we watover such assets, we would be required
to reverse some or all of the valuation allowance.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.(i&3sed 2004)Share-Based Paymenivhich replaces SFAS No. 12&¢counting for
Stock-Based Compensatiand supersedes APB No. Zxcounting for Stock Issued to Employe8&AS No. 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of empl@yeek options, to be recognized in the finandialesnents based on their fair values,
beginning with the first interim or annual peridtiea June 15, 2005, with early adoption encouragredddition, SFAS No. 123R will cause
unrecognized expense (based on the amounts irrodomna footnote disclosure) related to optionstivey after
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the date of initial adoption to be recognized abarge to results of operations over the remainesging period. We are required to adopt
SFAS No. 123R in our third quarter of 2005, begigniuly 1, 2005. Under SFAS No. 123R, we must dater the appropriate fair value
model to be used for valuing share-based paymgrgsmortization method for compensation cost Aedransition method to be used at the
date of adoption. The transition alternatives idelprospective and retroactive adoption methoddeUthe retroactive methods, prior perir
may be restated either as of the beginning of #ze yf adoption or for all periods presented. Tiospective method requires that
compensation expense be recorded for all unvestell eptions and share awards at the beginningeofitst quarter of adoption of SFAS
No. 123R, while the retroactive methods would rdammpensation expense for all unvested stock mptmd share awards beginning v

the first period restated. We are evaluating tlggirements of SFAS No. 123R and we expect thaatteption of SFAS No. 123R will have a
material impact on our consolidated results of apjens and earnings per share. We have not detedntive method of adoption or the effect
of adopting SFAS No. 123R.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task FOEEF") reached a consensus on Issue No. 0BhE Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investri®. EITF 03-1 provides new guidelines for the evatratind determination of whether a
loss on certain investments is other-than-tempaaad/requires certain additional disclosures partgito unrealized investment losses in a
company'’s financial statements. The effective dédtte evaluation and measurement criteria of 19$me03-1 have been delayed pending
issuance of additional implementation guidancehgyRASB. The additional disclosure requirementsyéh@r, remain effective for annual
periods ending after December 15, 2004. We contioueonitor the FASB'’s progress and do not curieexpect the adoption of the
evaluation and measurement criteria, once issubdwe a material impact on our consolidated resileperations or financial position.

RISK FACTORS

Our future operating results are highly uncertaBefore deciding to invest in our common stock angintain or increase your
investment, you should carefully consider the rigscribed below, in addition to the other inforrnatcontained in this report and in our
other filings with the SEC, including our subsedueports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K. The riskd ancertainties described below are
not the only ones we face. Additional risks andentainties not presently known to us or that werently deem immaterial may also affect
our business operations. If any of these risksalltwccur, that could seriously harm our busindgsancial condition or results of
operations. In that event, the market price for oammon stock could decline and you may lose gibor of your investment.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate and cause the price of our common stock to fall.

Our quarterly revenue and operating resulte ilctuated significantly in the past and maytoare to vary from quarter to quarter due to
a number of factors, many of which are not withim control. If our operating results do not meet éxpectations of securities analysts or
investors, our stock price may decline. Fluctuatiomour operating results may be due to a numbfarctors, including the following:

the size and timing of orders from and shipmentsutomajor customer:
. the size and timing of any return product requéstsur products

. our ability to maintain or increase gross marg

. variations in our sales channels or the mix ofmaduct sales

. the gain or loss of a key custom

. our ability to specify, develop, completetraduce, market and transition to volume productiew products and technologies in a
timely manner
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. the availability and pricing of competing produatsd technologies and the resulting effect on satelspricing of our product
. the effect of new and emerging technolog
. deferrals of orders by our customers in anticipatibnew products, applications, product enhancésnemoperating systems; a

. general economic and market conditic

A large portion of our operating expensesluding rent, depreciation and amortization is fixe! difficult to reduce or change.
Accordingly, if our total revenue does not meet exppectations, we may not be able to adjust ouersgs quickly enough to compensate for
the shortfall in revenue. In that event, our busédinancial condition and results of operatiomsiid be materially and adversely affected.

Due to all of the foregoing factors, and thieeo risks discussed in this report, you shouldralyton quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our
operating results as an indication of future peri@ance.

Although we have begun reporting backlog, our ability to predict our revenues and operating results is extremely limited.

We have historically operated with little bk because we have generally shipped our softpraducts and recognized revenue shortly
after we received orders because our productiole ¢tyas traditionally been very short. As a result, sales in any quarter were generally
dependent on orders that were booked and shippibditrmuarter. As our wireless business has evolwediuction cycle time for items such
as data kits has increased to the point that ordesved towards the end of a quarter may notwshi the subsequent quarter. Additionally,
customers may issue purchase orders that havedextelelivery dates that may cause the shipmeitltonfa subsequent quarter. These
situations make it difficult for us to predict whair revenues and operating results will be in qugrter. Therefore, the level of backlog is
necessarily indicative of trends in our businessoADecember 31, 2004, we had a backlog of apprately $1.0 million.

We depend upon a small number of customersfor a significant portion of our revenues.

In the past we have derived a substantialgrodf our revenues from sales to a small numbeusfomers and expect to continue to do so
in the future. The agreements we have with theiBe=ndo not require them to purchase any mininguantity of our products and may be
terminated by the entity or us at any time for eegson upon minimal prior written notice. Accordingve cannot be certain that these
customers will continue to place large orders fargroducts in the future, or purchase our prodattd!. Our largest OEM customer
accounted for 68.4% and 27.0% of our net revenuésa years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 ctasghe. Our three largest OEM
customers accounted for 77.8% and 47.9% in thesymated December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Our customers may acquire products from oumpetitors or develop their own products that commitectly with ours. Any substantial
decrease or delay in our sales to one or moreesktlentities in any quarter would have an advdfset®n our results of operations. In
addition, certain of our customers have in the pastmay in the future acquire competitors or luaed by competitors, causing further
industry consolidation. In the past, such acquisgtihave caused the purchasing departments obthkiged companies to reevaluate their
purchasing decisions. If one of our major custone@igages in an acquisition in the future, it cahdnge its current purchasing habits. In
event, we could lose the customer, or experierdmceease in orders from that customer or a delaydars previously made by that custor
Further, although we maintain allowances for dautdatcounts, the insolvency of one or more of oajancustomers could result in a
substantial decrease in our revenues.
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Competition within our product marketsisintense and includes numerous established competitors, which could negatively affect our
revenues.

We operate in markets that are extremely cdithpgeeand subject to rapid changes in technol@&pecifically, Microsoft Corporation poses
a significant competitive threat to us because bd&oft operating systems may include some capasilitow provided by certain of our OEM
and retail software products. If users are satisfidying on the capabilities of the Windowased systems or other operating systems, or
vendors products, sales of our products are liteeljecline. In addition, because there are lowibarto entry into the software market, we
expect significant competition from both establla@d emerging software companies in the futurehBrmore, many of our existing and
potential OEM customers may acquire or develop petsithat compete directly with our products.

Microsoft and many of our other current andspective competitors have significantly greatearicial, marketing, service, support,
technical and other resources than we do. As dtyéisely may be able to adapt more quickly to newraerging technologies and changes in
customer requirements or to devote greater resstiocthe promotion and sale of their products. lierlso a substantial risk that
announcements of competing products by large catopesuch as Microsoft or other vendors could ltésuthe cancellation of orders by
customers in anticipation of the introduction o€lsunew products. In addition, some of our compediturrently make complementary
products that are sold separately. Such competitmrksl decide to enhance their competitive positigioundling their products to attract
customers seeking integrated, cost-effective saévapplications. Some competitors have a retailtersig and offer OEM products with a
reduced set of features. The opportunity for retagrade sales may induce these and other compdtitsnake OEM products available at
their own cost or even at a loss. We also expanpetition to increase as a result of software itngusonsolidations, which may lead to the
creation of additional large and well-financed cetitprs. Increased competition is likely to resnlprice reductions, fewer customer orders,
reduced margins and loss of market share.

Acquisitions of companies or technologies may disrupt our business and divert management attention and cause our current operations to
suffer.

We have in the past made and we expect tontento consider acquisitions of complementary canigs, products or technologies. If we
make any additional acquisitions, we will be reqdito assimilate the operations, products and pes@f the acquired businesses and train,
retain and motivate key personnel from the acquingzinesses. We may be unable to maintain uniftandards, controls, procedures and
policies if we fail in these efforts. Similarly, @aisitions may cause disruptions in our operatams divert management’s attention from our
company’s day-to-day operations, which could impair relationships with our current employees, @urs and strategic partners.
Acquisitions may also subject us to liabilities aisks that are not known or identifiable at thradiof the acquisition.

We may also have to incur debt or issue eggturities in order to finance future acquisitiofise issuance of equity securities for any
acquisition could be substantially dilutive to @xisting stockholders. In addition, we expect awfipability could be adversely affected
because of acquisition-related accounting costsaaitd offs. In consummating acquisitions, we ds®aubject to risks of entering
geographic and business markets in which we hagidiméed or no prior experience. If we are unatoléully integrate acquired businesses,
products or technologies within existing operatjose may not receive the intended benefits of aitjoms.

| f the adoption of new technologies and services grows more slowly than anticipated in our product planning and development, our future
sales and profits may be negatively affected.

If the adoption of new technologies and s&widoes not grow or grows more slowly than antteighén our product planning and
development, demand for certain of our productssamdices will be reduced. For example, our newcklink Mobile Wi-Fi product
provides notebook users with the ability to roartween wireless wide area networks (“WWAN?") and WiHBt spots. Another product,
QuickLink Wi-Fi, allows users to
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seek out and select available hot spots in the&.arherefore, future sales and any future profits these and related products are
substantially dependent upon the widespread acueptnd use of Wi-Fi as an effective medium of camigation by consumers and
businesses.

Our products may contain undetected software errors, which could negatively affect our revenues.

Our software products are complex and mayaionindetected errors. In the past, we have disedv&oftware errors in certain of our
products and have experienced delayed or lost uvmgeduring the period it took to correct thesersrralthough we and our OEM customers
test our products, it is possible that errors maydund in our new or existing products after weeheommenced commercial shipment of
those products. These undetected errors could iasadiverse publicity, loss of revenues, delagnarket acceptance of our products or clz
against us by customers.

Technology and customer needs change rapidly in our market, which could render our products obsolete and negatively affect our revenue.

Our future success will depend on our abtlitanticipate and adapt to changes in technologyiradustry standards. We will also need to
continue to develop and introduce new and enhapicaEtlicts to meet our customers’ changing demaredsy kp with evolving industry
standards, including changes in the Microsoft djrgasystems with which our products are desigedoketcompatible, and to promote those
products successfully. The communications andigslisoftware markets in which we operate are dtarized by rapid technological chan
changing customer needs, frequent new productdattions, evolving industry standards and shordpeblife cycles. Any of these factors
could render our existing products obsolete andarkatable. In addition, new products and produbbBenements can require long
development and testing periods as a result ofdingplexities inherent in today’s computing envir@nts and the performance demanded by
customers. If our software markets do not devetowa anticipate, or our products do not gain widesg acceptance in these markets or if
we are unable to develop new versions of our saéypeoducts that can operate on future operatistesys, our business, financial condition
and results of operations could be materially ahteesely affected.

Delays or failure in deliveries from our component suppliers could cause our net revenue to decline and harm our results of operations.

We rely on third party suppliers to providewith services and components for our product Riteese components include: compact discs;
cables; printed manuals; and boxes. We do not lueneterm supply arrangements with any vendor taiolthese necessary services and
components for our products. If we are unable telpase components from these suppliers or if thepaat disc replication services that we
use do not deliver our requirements on schedulenese not be able to deliver products to our custsre a timely basis or enter into new
orders because of a shortage in components. Aaysléhat we experience in delivering our produztsustomers could impair our customer
relationships and adversely impact our reputatimh@ur business. In addition, if our third partypgliers raise their prices for components or
services, our gross margins would be reduced.

We may be unable to adequately protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights, which could negatively impact our revenues.

Our success is dependent upon our software loase, our programming methodologies and othelteotual properties and proprietary
rights. In order to protect our proprietary tectogyl, we rely on a combination of trade secret, mmidsure and copyright and trademark law.
We currently own United States trademark regisiretifor certain of our trademarks and United Stpggsnts for certain of our technologies,
however, these measures afford us only limitedgetain. Furthermore, we rely primarily on “shrinkap” licenses that are not signed by the
end user and, therefore, may be unenforceable wiheldaws of certain jurisdictions. Accordinglyjstpossible that third parties may copy or
otherwise obtain our rights without our authoriaatilt is also possible that third parties may
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independently develop technologies similar to olinnay be difficult for us to detect unauthoriagge of our intellectual property and
proprietary rights.

We may be subject to claims of intellectuaarty infringement as the number of trademark&eia, copyrights and other intellectual
property rights asserted by companies in our inglggbws and the coverage of these patents and ogfts and the functionality of software
products increasingly overlap. From time to time, lmave received communications from third parteseging that our trade name or
features, content, or trademarks of certain ofpzaducts infringe upon intellectual property rightdd by such third parties. We have also
received correspondence from third parties sedsrasserting that our fax products may infringecentain patents held by each of the par
Although we are not aware that any of our prodirdtinge on the proprietary rights of others, thiarties may claim infringement by us with
respect to our current or future products. Infringat claims, whether with or without merit, couddult in time-consuming and costly
litigation, divert the attention of our managemeat,ise product shipment delays or require us t&r émb royalty or licensing agreements
with third parties. If we are required to enteoimbyalty or licensing agreements, they may nadiéerms that are acceptable to us.
Unfavorable royalty or licensing agreements coeldasisly impair our ability to market our products.

Our stock priceis highly volatile. Accordingly, you may not be able to resell your shares of common stock at or above the price you paid for
them.

The market price of our common stock has flatetd substantially in the past and is likely tatowe to be highly volatile and subject to
wide fluctuations. These fluctuations have occuaed may continue to occur in response to variaa®fs, many of which we cannot
control, including:

. guarte-to-quarter variations in our operating resu

. announcements of technological innovations or nesdycts by our competitors, customers or
. market conditions within our retail and OEM softeanarkets

. general global economic and political instabil

. changes in earnings estimates or investment recoaatiens by analyst

. changes in investor perceptions;

. changes in expectations relating to our produdésispand strategic position or those of our conqtior customer:

In addition, the market prices of securiti€igh technology companies have been especialtie This volatility has significantly
affected the market prices of securities of mahtelogy companies. Accordingly, you may not beadblresell your shares of common
stock at or above the price you paid. In the pashpanies that have experienced volatility in tteekat price of their securities have been the
subjects of securities class action litigationwé were the object of a securities class actiggeliton, it could result in substantial losses and
divert management’s attention and resources frdraranatters.

If we are unable to retain key personnel, the loss of their services could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Our future performance depends in signifigzart upon the continued service of our senior mamant and other key technical and
consulting personnel. We do not have employmergeagents with our key employees that govern thetteofgtheir service. The loss of the
services of our key employees would materially addersely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations. Our future
success also depends on our ability to continattact, retain and motivate qualified personnattipularly highly skilled engineers involved
in the ongoing research
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and development required to develop and enhanceasomunication software products as well thoseuintaghly specialized consulting
business. Competition for these employees remagisand employee retention is a common problemuimiredustry. Our inability to attract
and retain the highly trained technical personhat are essential to our product development, dingservices, marketing, service and
support teams may limit the rate at which we caregate revenue, develop new products or producrer@ments and generally would have
an adverse effect on our business, financial cmmdénd results of operations. Additionally, retagnkey employees during restructuring
efforts is critical to our company’s success.

We may need to raise additional capital in the future through the issuance of additional equity, or convertible debt securities or by
borrowing money, in order to meet our capital needs. Additional funds may not be available on terms acceptable to usto allow us to meet
our capital needs.

We believe that the cash, cash equivalentsraredtments on hand and the cash we expect taaerfeom operations will be sufficient to
meet our capital needs for at least the next tweldwaths. However, it is possible that we may neethoose to obtain additional financing to
fund our activities. We could raise these fundséling more stock to the public or to selectedesters, or by borrowing money. We may
be able to obtain additional funds on favorablenteror at all. If adequate funds are not availalvkemay be required to curtail our operations
or other business activities significantly or tdaib funds through arrangements with strategicngastor others that may require us to
relinquish right to certain technologies or potahtnarkets. If we raise additional funds by issuadiglitional equity or convertible debt
securities, the ownership percentages of existimgkbholders would be reduced. In addition, the g debt securities that we issue may
have rights, preferences or privileges senior ts¢hof the holders of our common stock. We curydrdle no established line of credit or
other business borrowing facility in place.

It is possible that our future capital reqments may vary materially from those now planndte amount of capital that we will need in
the future will depend on many factors, including:

. the market acceptance of our produ

. the levels of promotion and advertising thédk be required to launch our products and achigwé maintain a competitive position
in the marketplace

. our business, product, capital expenditure ancarekeand development plans and product and techypotmdmaps
. the levels of inventory and accounts receivabléweamaintain

. capital improvements to new and existing facilit

. technological advance

e our competitor response to our products; a

our relationships with suppliers and custom

In addition, we may require additional capftahccommodate planned growth, hiring, infrastiteetand facility needs or to consummate
acquisitions of other businesses, products or tolgres.

Our business, financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected as a result of legal, business and economic risks specific
to international operations.

Approximately 5.2%, 14.8% and 15.1% of oureraves in the years ended December 31, 2004, 2@D3002, respectively, were derived
from sales to customers outside the United Stélfesalso frequently ship products to our domestgt@mers’ international manufacturing
divisions and subcontractors. In the future, we mwgyand these international business activitigsriational operations are subject to many
inherent risks, including:
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. general political, social and economic instabil

. trade restrictions

. the imposition of governmental contra

. exposure to different legal standards, particulaith respect to intellectual proper
. burdens of complying with a variety of foreign la\

. import and export license requirements and regiristof the United States and each other countwhich we operate
. unexpected changes in regulatory requiremt

. foreign technical standarc

. changes in tariffs

. difficulties in staffing and managing internatiormgderations

. difficulties in securing and servicing internatiboastomers

. difficulties in collecting receivables from foreigmtities; anc

. potentially adverse tax consequent

These conditions may increase our cost ofglbirsiness. Moreover, as our customers are adyefetted by these conditions, our
business with them may be disrupted and our restittperations could be adversely affected.

The market price of our common stock may be adver$g affected by the sale of significant numbers ofr&res of our common stock by
any of our principal stockholders.

A total of 3,500,000 shares of our common stock wasntly sold in a private placement in February52@hd we expect to file a
registration statement covering the resale of sheines in April 2005. In addition, there are otlaege blocks of shares held by individual
stockholders which are eligible for resale undeleR44, including William W. Smith, who held 3,7125 shares at February 21, 2005, and
Rhonda L. Smith who held 3,316,615 shares. Ovarailfrading volume fluctuates widely and at tineselatively limited. The market price
for our common stock could decline as a resulhefdale of a large number of the shares or theeption that such sales may occur. The sale
of a large number of our common stock also mighteriamore difficult for us to sell equity or equitelated securities in the future at a time
and at the prices that we deem appropriate.

We may be subject to regulatory scrutiny and may sstain a loss of public confidence if we are unable satisfy regulatory
requirements relating to internal controls over financial reporting .

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@fires us to perform an evaluation of our intecoeatrols over financial reporting and
have our independent registered public accountingdttest to such evaluation on an annual bagsimliance with these requirements can
be expensive and timesnsuming. While we believe that we will be ablerteet the required deadlines, no assurance caivére that we will
meet the required deadlines in future years. Ifaildo timely complete this evaluation, or if caunditors cannot timely attest to our
evaluation, we may be subject to regulatory scyudind a loss of public confidence in our interr@itcols.

Provisions of our charter and bylaws and Delaware law could make a takeover of our company difficult .

Our certificate of incorporation and bylawsitain provisions that may discourage or prevehira fparty from acquiring us, even if doing
so would be beneficial to our stockholders. Fotanee, our certificate of
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incorporation authorizes the board of directorxdhe rights and preferences of shares of anes@f preferred stock, without action by our
stockholders. As a result, the board can authatimkissue shares of preferred stock, which codbdyd® prevent a change of control because
the rights given to the holders of such prefertedlsmay prohibit a merger, reorganization, salether extraordinary corporate transaction.
In addition, we are organized under the laws of3tae of Delaware and certain provisions of Deladaw may have the effect of delaying

or preventing a change in our control.

We may be subject to additional risks.

The risks and uncertainties described aboraat the only ones we face. Additional risks andeutainties not presently known to us or
that we currently deem immaterial may also advgrafect our business operations.

Item 7A. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Our financial instruments include cash anchauivalents. At December 31, 2004, the carryimges of our financial instruments
approximated fair values based on current marke¢prand rates. Because of their short duraticemgbs in market interest rates would not
have a material effect on fair value.

It is our policy not to enter into derivatifieancial instruments. We do not currently have aigyificant foreign currency exposure as we
do not transact business in foreign currenciessuth, we do not have significant currency expoatii@ecember 31, 2004.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements anddaleeappear in a separate section of this AnnupbR®n Form 10-K beginning on page F-1
and S-1, respectively.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

2004

Net Revenue

Gross Profit

Operating Incom

Net Income

Net Income Per Share, Ba:

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, B
Net Income Per Share, Diluts

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, Dilt

2003

Net Revenue

Gross Profit

Operating Los!

Net (Loss) Incomi

Net (Loss) Income Per Share, Ba
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, B
Net (Loss) Income Per Share, Dilul

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, Dilt

(UNAUDITED)
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Three Months Ende(

March 31 June 30 September 3 December 3:
(in thousands, except per share amot

$ 2,48¢ $ 3,117 $ 3,55¢ $ 4,15¢

1,79¢ 2,38t 2,88: 3,34(

94 644 1,08t 1,64(

$ 103 $ 634 $ 1,07 $ 1,631

$ 001 $ 004 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

17,02« 17,07: 17,25¢ 17,70¢

$ 001 $ 00¢ $ 0.0€ $ 0.0¢

18,04: 18,02 18,61 19,12¢

Three Months Ende

March 31 June 30 September 3 December 3:
(in thousands, except per share amot

$1861 $228 $ 1,501 $ 1,562

1,462 1,771 1,13 1,18(

(254) 115 (482) (335)

$ 2500 $ 124 $ (472 $ (329

$ (02 $ 001 $ (009 $ (009

16,22 16,25 16,61( 16,94¢

$ (02 $ 001 $ (009 $ (009

16,228 17,82: 16,61( 16,94¢
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ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurdéider the supervision and with the participatdour management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial io#fr, we evaluated the effectiveness of the desighoperation of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or1B%d) under the Exchange Act). Based upon thdtiatian, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer concluded thatpathe end of the period covered by this report,disclosure controls and procedures were
effective in timely alerting them to the materialdrmation related to us (or our consolidated silibsies) required to be included in the
reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act.

(b) Changes in Internal ControlsDuring the most recent fiscal quarter coveredhisy report, there has been no change in our iatern
control over financial reporting (as defined in &adBa-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Acd} tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intercantrol over financial reporting.

PART 1lI

Certain information required by Part Ill isorporated by reference from our definitive Proxgt&ment to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with the solimtaof proxies for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stholders currently expected to be
held on May 24, 2005 (“the Proxy Statement”).

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth certain infortioa regarding our executive officers as of Febyues, 2005.

Name Age Position

William W. Smith, Jr. 57 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeutiv
Officer

Robert W. Scheussler 58 Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, &hi
Financial Officer and Directc

David P. Sperling 36 Vice President and Chief Technical Offic

William R. Wyand 57 Vice President, Wireless and OEM Se¢

Christopher G. Lippincot 33 Vice President, Internet and Direct S¢

Mr. Smithcofounded Smith Micro and has served as our Chairofigime Board, President and Chief Executive Offiiace inception i
1982. Mr. Smith was employed by Rockwell InternagibCorporation in a variety of technical and mamagnt positions from 1975 to 1984.
Mr. Smith served with Xerox Data Systems from 182
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1975 and RCA Computer Systems Division from 1969982 in mainframe sales and pre-sale technicasrdfir. Smith received a B.A. in
Business Administration from Grove City College.

Mr. Scheusslejoined us in May 1995 and has served as our Chpef&ing Officer since September 1999 and as oief Eimancial
Officer since June 2001. Mr. Scheussler serveceagBVice President-Engineering and Chief TecHr@fficer from May 1995 until
September 1999. From May 1995 to April 1997, he alas Vice President of Operations. From Febru@861to the present, Mr. Scheussler
has been a member of our Board of Directors. Roigmining us, from June 1973 to May 1995 Mr. Sasder held positions with Rockwell
International Corporation, most recently as theeBtior-Architecture and Technology at its Informat®ystems Center. Mr. Scheussler holds
a B.S. in Industrial Engineering from PennsylvaBiate University and an M.S. in Operations Resefiorh Polytechnic University in New
York. He also completed the Executive Program anfstrd University.

Mr. Sperlingjoined us in April 1989 and has been our DirecfoBaoftware Engineering since April 1992. He assuniedChief
Technology Officer position from Mr. ScheusslelSeptember 1999. Mr. Sperling began his professicaraer as a software engineer witl
and he currently has three patents pending foouarielephony and Internet technologies. Mr. Spgriarned a B.S. degree in Computer
Science from the University of California, Irvine.

Mr. Wyandjoined the company in 1999 when Smith Micro acqli®d F Technologies where Mr. Wyand was PresidethiGirief
Executive Officer. As General Manager he ran theiltash division sales, marketing, engineering esstomer support efforts. Later that
year, Mr. Wyand moved into the newly created Wseland Broadband division as General Manager aR@d4 became Vice Preside
Wireless and OEM Sales. From 1995 to 1999, Mr. Vdyaas President and Chief Executive Officer of SEEhnologies. From 1984 to
1995, Mr. Wyand held various interim management@ortsulting positions. From 1977 to 1984, he haldous positions with United
Telecom Computer Group. From 1973 to 1977, he w@srsultant with Arthur Young & Co. He graduatedhwa B.S. from Pennsylvania
State University and an MBA from Rockhurst College.

Mr. Lippincottjoined the company in 1993 as a senior sales reptative and later holding several sales positibm$998 he was
appointed Director of North American Sales and@6@named General Manager of the Internet Solutiinision, then as Vice President,
Internet and Direct Sales in 2004. Prior to joinBmith Micro, Mr. Lippincott held several retailles positions. He attended the University of
California at Berkeley majoring in business adntnaison. Officers are elected by, and serve atlikeretion of, the Board of Directors.

Other information required by this sectioinisorporated by reference from the informationtia sections entitled “Election of Directors”
and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the ExchaAg# appearing in our Proxy Statement.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that apfdiedl of our employees, including our principakextive officer, our principal financial
officer, and all members of our finance departnmarforming similar functions. Our Code of EthicssAded as Exhibit 14 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembefBa3 which was filed on March 25, 2004. In therg\ed an amendment to, or a waiver
from, certain provisions of our Code of Ethics, wiend, to the extent possible, to satisfy Form 8igclosure requirements by disclosing this
information on our website at www.smithmicro.com

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The section titled “Executive Compensation Redated Informationappearing in our Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy referenct
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The section titled “Ownership of Securitiegpaaring in our Proxy Statement is incorporate@indoy reference.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plan

The following table provides information asdécember 31, 2004 with respect to the sharesrofraan stock that may be issued under
existing equity compensation plan.

Number of Shares to be Issi  Weighted Averagr  Number of Share
Upon Exercise of Outstandi  Exercise Price ¢ Remaining Availabl

(In thousands, except per share amot Options Outstanding Optior for Future Issuanc
Equity Compensation Plan Approved by ShareholdEr 1,79¢ $ 1.5¢ 1,44¢
Equity Compensation Plan Not Approved by Sharehel 0 0 0
Total 1,79¢ $ 1.5¢ 1,44¢

(1) Consists of the 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuanaa
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The response to this Item will be containedun Proxy Statement under the heading “Relatety Haansactions” and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The response to this Item will be containethiProxy Statement under the heading “RatificatibAppointment of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm — Principal Acotant Fees and Services” and is incorporated hbgemference.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a)(2) Financial Statements

Smith Micro’s financial statements appear Beparate section of this Annual Report on FornK i&ginning on the pages referenced
below:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, £00200: F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheoftiree years in the period ended December 34, F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeghDecember 31, 20( F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoftiree years in the period ended December 3%, F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for eathe three years in the period ended Decembe2@14 F-6

(2) Financial Statement Schedule

Smith Micro’s financial statement scheduleeqos in a separate section of this Annual RepoRaym 10-K on the pages referenced
below. All other schedules have been omitted ag dine not applicable, not required or the inforimatis included in the consolidated
financial statements or the notes thereto.

Page
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for each of theeke years in the period ended December 31, - S-1
(3) Exhibits

Exhibit

No. Title Method of Filing

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the iRegnt’s
Registrant Registration Statement No.-95096.

3.1.1 Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certifidate o Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to tlegRtrant’s
Incorporation of the Registrant. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endiale 30,

2000.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the iRegnt’s

Registration Statement No.-95096.

4.1 Specimen certificate representing shares of Com&took of the Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the iRtegnt’s
Registrant Registration Statement No.-95096.

10.1  Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thgiRgant's
Registration Statement No.-95096.

10.2* 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan as AmendddRastate Incorporated by reference to the Appendix attadbetie

through February 7, 2001. Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2001 Annual Megtof
Stockholders filed on April 27, 200
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Exhibit

No. Title Method of Filing

10.4 t Master Software License and Distribution Agreen{@untract Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thgiReant’s
No. 22(-00-0134) effective as of December 1, 2000, between Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
Cellco Partnership (d/b/a Verizon Wireless) andRlegistran 2003.

10.4.1t Amendment of Master Software License and Distriuti Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1.1 toRegistrant’s
Agreement (Contract No. 220-00-0134) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
2003.
10.4.2t Amendment No. 2 to the Master Software License and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1.2 toRegistrant’s
Distribution Agreement (Contract No. 220-00-0134) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30,
2003.
14.1 Code of Ethics Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to thgiRgant's

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethde
December 31, 200:

14.1.1  Attachment 1 to Code of Ethics Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to thgiBeant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethde
December 31, 200:

21.1 Subsidiaries Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to thgiRgant's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethde
December 31, 200!

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouring. Filed herewitr

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Filed herewith
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Filed herewith
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer aretChief Filed herewith
Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of theb@aes-Oxley
Act of 2002

* Indicates management contract or compensatorygslamrangemen

T Confidential treatment has been granted withaes certain confidential portions of this exhipiursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which confiderpiaitions have been omitted from the exhibit atetifseparately with the Securities
and Exchange Commissic

(b) Exhibits on Form 8-K

A Current Report on Formi8was filed with the Securities and Exchange Consinison October 18, 2004 in connection with thet@a
of Samuel Gulko to the Board of Directors.
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A Current Report on Form 8-K was filed witletBecurities and Exchange Commission on Octobe2®®} in connection with the
earnings release for the fiscal quarter ended Sdq®e30, 2004.

(c) Exhibits
The exhibits filed as part of this report bséed above in Item 15(a) (3) of this Form 10-K.

(d) Financial Statement Schedule

The Financial Statement Schedule required dguRition S-X and Item 8 of this Form are listedwabin Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunly authorized.

SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC.

Date: March 30, 200 By:/s/ William W. Smith, Jr
William W. Smith, Jr.
Chairman of the Boart
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 30, 200 By:/s/ Robert W. Scheussl
Robert W. Scheussle
Chief Operating Officer an
Chief Financial Office!

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidnaolv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ordttes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ William W. Smith, Jr. Chairman of the Board, President and Chief March 30, 2005
Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

William W. Smith, Jr.

/sl Robert W. Scheussler Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, March 30, 2005
Chief Financial Officer and Director (Principal

Robert W. Scheussli Financial and Accounting Officer)

/sl Thomas G. Campbell Director March 30, 2005

Thomas G. Campbe

/sl Samuel Gulko Director March 30, 2005

Samuel Gulkc

s/ William C. Keipet
Director March 30, 2005

William C. Keiper

/sIGregory J. Szak
Director March 30, 200¢

Gregory J. Szab
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Smith Micro Software, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Smith Micro Software, Inc. and subsiels (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, stockholders’ yauid cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Qlitsaalso included the financial statement schelistied in the Index at Item 15(a)(:
These consolidated financial statements and tladial statement schedule are the responsibilithe@fCompany’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgsotidated financial statements and the finan¢a&ksment schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirel control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtrneer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expresamgpinion on the effectiveness of the Compamygtarnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evideapparting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the acamuptinciples used and significant estimates mad@énagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of Smith Micro Software,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 808,2and the results of their operations and ttesh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformiti atcounting principles generally accepted inUhéed States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, whetsicered in relation to the basic consolidatedrfoia statements taken as a whole, pre:
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Costa Mesa, California
March 30, 2005
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2004 2003

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8,63¢ $ 3,722
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doutdftdounts and other adjustments of $137 (200438d

(2003) 2,02 741
Income tax receivabl 35
Inventories, ne 47 22
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 203 204

Total current asse 10,94: 4,68¢
EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS, ne 113 70
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, ne 40
GOODWILL 1,71¢ 1,71¢
OTHER ASSETS, ne 57 73

$ 12,82¢ $ 6,580

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl $ 93¢ $ 53¢
Accrued liabilities 79C 45¢
Total current liabilities 1,72¢ 997

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 6

STOCKHOLDER¢ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share; :)000hares authorized; none issued and outsta
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share; 30,00Gbéres authorized; 18,011,000 and 17,011,00@shar

issued and outstandir 18 17
Additional paic-in capital 27,75( 25,68
Accumulated defici (16,669 (20,119

Net stockholder equity 11,09¢ 5,59(

$ 12,82¢ $ 6,58i

See notes to consolidated financial statements




Table of Contents

SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
NET REVENUES:
Products $12,39¢ $ 6,291 $ 6,02¢
Services 922 92t 1,102
Total Net Revenue 13,31¢ 7,21¢ 7,131
COST OF REVENUES
Products 2,53( 1,35(C 1,42
Services 38C 321 782
Total Cost of Revenue 2,91( 1,671 2,20z
GROSS PROFI’ 10,40¢ 5,54¢ 4,92¢
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and marketin 1,51¢ 1,66¢€ 2,17¢
Research and developmt 2,55¢ 2,50¢ 2,16z
General and administratiy 2,86¢ 2,33( 2,381
Total operating expens 6,94: 6,50z 6,724
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS 3,46¢ (957) (1,795
INTEREST INCOME 53 37 45
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXE: 3,51¢ (920 (1,750)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT 71 3 (1,062)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 3,44 $ (929 $ (68
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE, bas $ 0.2C $ (0.06) $ (0.09
WEIGHTED AVG SHARES OUTSTANDING, basi 17,267 16,51 16,23¢
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE, fully dilute $ 0.1¢ $ (0.06) $ (0.09
WEIGHTED AVG SHARES OUTSTANDING, fully dilute 18,41: 16,51 16,23¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(In thousands)

Additional
Common stock paid-in Accumulated
Shares Amount capital deficit Total
BALANCE, January 1, 200 16,23 $ 16 $ 24,78¢ $ (18,50) $ 6,30z
Exercise of common stock optio 3 3 3
Repurchase and retirement of common s 8 5) (5)
Net loss (68¢) (68¢)
BALANCE, December 31, 200 16,22: 16 24,78 (29,19) 5,61z
Exercise of common stock optio 80¢ 1 913 914
Repurchase and retirement of common s (24) (13 (13
Net loss (929) (929
BALANCE, December 31, 200 17,01: 17 25,687 (20,119 5,59(
Exercise of common stock optio 1,00(¢ 1 1,99t 1,99¢
Tax benefit related to the exercise of stock ot 68 68
Net income 3,44t 3,44t
BALANCE, December 31, 200 18,01: $ 18 $ 27,75( $ (16,669  $11,09¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to r@esthcprovided by (used in) operating activiti

Depreciation and amortizatic

Provision for doubtful accounts and other adjustisiém accounts receivak

Tax benefit related to the exercise of stock ot
Change in operating accoun

Accounts receivabl

Income tax receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure

Net cash used in investing activit|

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of common sl
Cash used in repurchase of common s

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of yei

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of yes

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIC-
Cash paid (received) during the year for incomes

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Years ended December 31,

2004

2003

2002

$ 3448  $ (929 $ (689
14€ 41¢ 605
112 132 48¢
68

(1,395) (240) 1,60¢
(39
(25) 23 25C
(30) 12) (31)
732 (157) (1,801)
3,01¢ (767) 42€
(102) (39) (23)
(102) (39) (23)
1,99¢ 914 3
13 ®
1,99¢ 901 )
4,91z 95 401
3,72: 3,621 3,22¢

$ 863 $ 372 $ 362

$ 38 $ 3 $(1,069
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of BusinessSmith Micro Software, Inc. and subsidiaries (tBempany”) is a diversified developer and marketer
wireless communication software products and sesvithe Company manufactures, markets and sells-alded wireless telephony
products targeted to the original equipment mariufacs (“OEM”) market, particularly wireless sergiproviders and mobile phone
manufacturers as well as direct to the consumes.ddmpany offers software products for Windows ¥Wdows 2000, Windows NT,
Windows 98, Windows CE, Pocket PC, Mac, Palm, lamd Linux operating systems. The Company also ®ffesfessional consulting
services that help clients implement web-basedeptsj An extension of the Company’s consultingvétgtincludes the offering of
fulfillment services for customer web stores. At of the Company sales are made direct to hardware device andmdrsompute
manufacturers under OEM agreements. The CompaByisieess products enable websites to be creatbdsteihdard HTML text and
provide fully automated payment processing andraadeounting.

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemegftect the operating results and financial posiof Smith
Micro Software, Inc. and its wholly owned subsigkarin accordance with accounting principles gdhesacepted in the United States
of America. All intercompany amounts have been lated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalert€ash and cash equivalents generally consistsif,government securities and money market funidssd
securities are all held in one financial institatié\ll have original maturity dates of three montindess.

Accounts ReceivableThe Company sells its products worldwide. The @any performs ongoing credit evaluations of itstcomers
and generally does not require collateral. The Camgpnaintains allowances for estimated credit lsard those losses have been
within management’s estimates. Allowances for pobdeturns are included in other adjustments toawts receivable on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Progluechs are estimated based on historical experi@nddave also been within
management’s estimates.

Inventories- Inventories consist principally of manuals andsGind are stated at the lower of cost (determigatidfirst-in, first-out
method) or market. The Company regularly reviewsnventory quantities on hand and records a pi@vifor excess and obsolete
inventory based primarily on management’s estimédegtast of product demand and production requerés

Equipment and ImprovementgEquipment and improvements are stated at cogtrd@ation is computed using the straight-line rodth
based on the estimated useful lives of the asgetgrally ranging from three to seven years. Lesldamprovements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorteghefestimated useful life of the asset or the léaisn.

Long Lived Assets Fhe Company accounts for the impairment and disiposof long-lived assets in accordance with Staenof
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 14dcounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Liv&sisets This statement addres
financial accounting and reporting for the impainnef long-lived assets and for the disposal ofjiimed assets. In accordance with
SFAS No. 144, long-lived assets to be held areevesd for events or changes in circumstances, whiibate that their carrying value
may not be recoverable. The Company periodicallieres the carrying value of long-lived assets ttedaine whether or not an
impairment to such value has occurred. The Compasydetermined that there was no impairment atibeee31, 2004.
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 (Continued)

Goodwill- The Company adopted SFAS No. 1@&odwill and Other Intangible Assetffective January 1, 2002 and no impairment
was identified. As a result of the adoption, therany is no longer required to amortize goodwillatcordance with SFAS No. 142,
the Company reviews the recoverability of the dagywalue of goodwill at least annually or whenegeents or circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The Company’s annual impaint testing date is December 31. Recoverabilityoaidwill is determined by
comparing the fair value of the Company’s reportimits to the carrying value of the underlying assets in the reporting units. If the
fair value of a reporting unit is determined tolégs than the carrying value of its net assetsggdbis deemed impaired and an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent thatcdrrying value of goodwill exceeds the differebeéwveen the fair value of the
reporting unit and the fair value of its other assand liabilities. The Company determined thdidtnot have any impairment of
goodwill at December 31, 2004.

Revenue RecogniticrSoftware revenue is recognized in accordance thvalStatement of Position (“SOP”) 97Shftware Revenue
Recognitionas amended, when persuasive evidence of an arrangewists, delivery has occurred, the price ttesd fixed and
determinable, and collection is probable. The Camgpacognizes revenues from sales of its softw@@EM customers or end users
completed products are shipped and title passémrarroyalties generated as authorized customgpicdte its software, if the other
requirements of SOP 97-2 are met. If the requiremehSOP 97-2 are not met at the date of shipmewénue is not recognized until
these elements are known or resolved. Returns @& customers are limited to defective goods ordgoshipped in error.
Historically, OEM customer returns have not begmiicant.

Prior to 2004, the Company permitted reseller ausis to return or exchange product and providezkiotection on products unsold
by a customer. As a result, revenue from resell@srecognized upon sell-through to the end custorataer than upon shipment. At
the end of 2003, the Company exited the retail chband no longer sells to distributors. Produtissdirectly to end users are
recognized upon delivery. End users have a thagyraght of return, but such returns have histdlydaeen immaterial. The Company
also provides technical support to its customenshSosts have historically been insignificant.

Service revenues include sales of consulting sesyiweb site hosting and fulfilment. Service rax@nare recognized as services are
provided or as milestones are delivered and acddpteustomers.

Software Development CostBevelopment costs incurred in the research amdldgment of new software products and enhancements
to existing software products are expensed asliedumtil technological feasibility has been essdteld. The Company considers
technological feasibility to be established whdrpknning, designing, coding and testing has lremnpleted according to design
specifications. After technological feasibilitygstablished, any additional costs are capitalizedough December 31, 2004, software
has been substantially completed concurrently thighestablishment of technological feasibility; aadcordingly, no costs have been
capitalized to date.
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 (Continued)

Sales IncentivesPursuant to the consensus of EITF 01A8;ounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor ©©uwstomer (Including a
Reseller of the Vendor’s Producgffective January 1, 2002, the cost of sales imeesithe Company offers without charge to customers
that can be used in, or that are exercisable lmstmer as a result of, a single exchange tramsaistiaccounted for as a reduction of
revenue.

Advertising ExpenseAdvertising costs are expensed as incurred. Athieg expenses were $47,000, $95,000 and $276¢0Qbe
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 ctasghe.

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes under SF&3.09,Accounting for Income TaxeJ his statement requires 1
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilif@sthe future consequences of events that have te®®gnized in the Company’s
financial statements or tax returns. The measurenfehe deferred items is based on enacted tas.lawthe event the future
consequences of differences between financial tieygopases and the tax bases of the Company’ssaasétiabilities result in a
deferred tax asset, SFAS No. 109 requires an el@iuaf the probability of being able to realize tfuture benefits indicated by such
asset. A valuation allowance related to a defetawdhsset is recorded when it is more likely thanthat some portion or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized. Duringytbar ended December 31, 2002, the Company readjaizax benefit of $1,071,000
related to a carryback of losses previously inatliskefully reserved net operating loss carryforvgras a result of a tax law change
(Note 5). The related refund was received in Sep&ar2002. The federal and state current provisitates to alternative minimum tax
liability. The Company has California net operatings carryforwards that expired during the 200dy&ar in the amount of $933,530.

Stock-Based Compensatioiihe Company accounts for stobised awards to employees using the intrinsic vakeod in accordan
with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion N&b, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employaed related interpretations. SFAS
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatiequires the disclosure of pro forma net incomsgj@nd income (loss) per share
had the Company adopted the fair value method #teedfeginning of fiscal 1995. Under SFAS No. 1i#8, fair value of stock-based
awards to employees is calculated through the fisptmn pricing models, even though such modelsevaeveloped to estimate the fair
value of freely tradable, fully transferable opsomithout vesting restrictions, which significandiffer from the Company’s stock
option awards. These models also require subjeaggamptions, including future stock price volgtiand expected time to exercise,
which greatly affect the calculated values.
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 (Continued)

The Company’s calculations were made using thelB&aholes option pricing model with the followingeighted average assumptions:
expected life, 48 months following grant date; ktaolatility, 127%, 125% and 133% for grants issire@004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively; risk-free interest rates of 3.47%3% and 2.99% for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectiaglgl no dividends during the
expected term. The Company’s calculations are basedsingle-option valuation approach, and foufeis or cancellations are
recognized as they occur. If the computed fair @alof the 2004, 2003 and 2002 awards had beeniaatbtd expense over the vesting
period of the awards, pro forma net income (loss)ll have been as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share d 2004 2003 2002
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss), as report $ 3,44t $ (929 $ (689
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgodetermined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effe (30¢) (28€) (240
Pro forma net income (los $ 3,137 $ (1,209 $ (92§

Income (loss) per Common Shi

As reported, Basi $ 0.2C $ (0.06) $ (0.09
As reported, Dilute: $ 0.1¢ $ (0.0¢) $ (0.09
Pro forma, Basii $ 0.1¢ $ (0.07) $ (0.0¢)
Pro forma, Dilutec $ 0.17 $ (0.07) $ (0.0¢)

Net Income (Loss) per Shar®ursuant to SFAS No. 12Barnings per Sharghe Company is required to provide dual presemaifo
“basic” and “diluted” earnings (loss) per share $EFBasic EPS amounts are based upon the weighéedge number of common
shares outstanding. Diluted EPS amounts are basedthe weighted average number of common and fi@teommon shares
outstanding. Potential common shares include sbptions using the treasury stock method. Poteatimimon shares are excluded from
the calculation of diluted EPS in loss years, asitfipact is antidilutive. Potential common share855,000 and 444,000 have been
excluded from diluted weighted average common shfmrethe years ended December 31, 2003 and 288Rectively.

Fulfillment Services The Company currently holds consigned inventooynfa customer, which is used to fulfill orders.tAs

Company does not hold title to the inventory, ibé recorded in the accompanying consolidatednoalaheets. In addition, the
Company receives cash for fulfillment orders, whiepaid out to the fulfillment customer on a mdnthasis. Such cash and the related
payable are recorded on a net basis as the amaenteld for the benefit of this fulfilment custem
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 (Continued)

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in comiity with generally accepted accounting principleguires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae reported amounts of assets and lialsliied disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finarstialements and the reported amounts of revenukesxgenses during the reporting years.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comprehensive Income(LossTomprehensive income, as defined, includes ahgbs in equity (net assets) during a period from n
owner sources. For each of the years ended Dece3tib2004, 2003 and 2002, there was no differeeteden net income (loss) and
comprehensive income (loss).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fhe Company’s financial instruments consist of caslsh equivalents and trade receivables and
payables. The carrying amounts of these instrunapysoximate fair value because of their short-teraturities.

New Accounting Pronouncementid December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1&8ged 2004)Share-Based Paymenivhich
replaces SFAS No. 1238ccounting for Stock-Based Compensatiad supersedes APB No. Z&%counting for Stock Issued to
Employees SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based paymerm@siployees, including grants of employee stocioapt to be
recognized in the financial statements based anfaievalues, beginning with the first interim annual period after June 15, 2005,
with early adoption encouraged. In addition, SFAS N23R will cause unrecognized expense (basedebarhounts in our pro forma
footnote disclosure) related to options vestingratte date of initial adoption to be recognize@ abarge to results of operations over
the remaining vesting period. The Company is reglio adopt SFAS No. 123R in the third quarter@id%, beginning July 1, 2005.
Under SFAS No. 123R, the Company will determineappropriate fair value model to be used for vajishare-based payments, the
amortization method for compensation cost andrdmesttion method to be used at the date of adoptiba transition alternatives
include prospective and retroactive adoption methbthder the retroactive methods, prior periods bmyestated either as of the
beginning of the year of adoption or for all pesqutesented. The prospective method requires dmapensation expense be recorded
for all unvested stock options and share awartiseabeginning of the first quarter of adoption &% No. 123R, while the retroactive
methods would record compensation expense fonaksted stock options and share awards beginnitigtiae first period restated. T
Company is evaluating the requirements of SFASI28R and expects that the adoption of SFAS No. MBRave a material impact
on its consolidated results of operations and agmper share. The Company has not determinedetigoohof adoption or the effect of
adopting SFAS No. 123R.

In March 2004, the EITF reached a consensus or INsu03-1,The Meaning of Other-Thafiemporary Impairment and Its Applicati
to Certain InvestmentsEITF 034 provides new guidelines for the evaluation anemeination of whether a loss on certain investm
is other-than-temporary and requires certain amftfti disclosures pertaining to unrealized investriesses in a company’s financial
statements. The effective date of the evaluati@hraeasurement criteria of Issue No. 03-1 have detyed pending issuance of
additional implementation guidance by the FASB. allditional disclosure requirements, however, rereffiective for annual periods
ending after December 15, 2004. Management corgitoimonitor the FASB's progress and does not atlgrexpect the adoption of
the evaluation and measurement criteria, once dsubave a material impact on the Company’s cadatdd results of operations or
financial position.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to tioe pears’consolidated financial statements to conform toctimeent
year presentation.
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SMITH MICRO SOFTWARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS
IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 (Continued)

2. EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS

Equipment and improvements consist of thefeithg (in thousands):

December 31

2004 2003
Machinery and equipme $ 74t $ 758
Leasehold improvemen 31t 304
Office furniture and fixture 107 111
1,167 1,16¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (1,059 (1,099

$ 11c $ 70

3. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table sets forth the acquirethirgible assets by major asset class:

Useful December 31, 200 December 31, 20C
Life Accumulater Net Book Accumulater Net Book
(Years) Gross Amortizatior Value Gross Amortizatior Value
(in thousands
Amortizing:
Purchased and Licensed Technol: 3 $ 2,26( $ (2260 $ — $ 2,26( $ (2220 $ 40

Aggregate amortization expense on intangible assatsapproximately $40,000, $184,000 and $284,00¢hE years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The carrying amount of the Company’s goodwill was745,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. Thep@oy's reporting units are
equivalent to its operating segments. At Decemltte£804 and 2003, the amount of goodwill allocadtethe products segment is
$1,380,000 and the amount of goodwill allocatethtoservices segment is $335,000.

4. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following(thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003

Salaries and benefi $ 78¢ $ 432
Royalties 1 18
Other 6 9

$ 79C $  45¢
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5. INCOME TAXES

A summary of the income tax expense (benisfis follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Current:

Federal $ 68 $ $ (1,079
State 3 3 3
Foreign 6
71 3 (1,062)

Deferred:
Federal 1,02t (329 507
State 427 (22) (93
Change in valuation allowan: (1,452 34€ (414
0 0 0

$ 71 $ 3 $(1,06)

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for iome taxes to the amount of income tax expense fibethet would result from applying
the federal statutory rate (35%) to the incomesjitefore income taxes is as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Federal statutory ra: 35% (39)% (35)%

State tax, net of federal bene

Nondeductible expense related to acquired intaag 2 1

Other (@D} 2 1

Federal benefit for NOL carryback law char (62)

Change in valuation allowan: (32 35 33
2% 0% (61)%
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The major components of the Company’s deferrecdsmets and liabilities are as follows (in thous@nds

December 31

2004 2003
Various reserve $ 91 $ 60
Nondeductible accrua 112 68
State taxe (529 (539
Prepaid expenst (77) (77)
Credit carryforward: 1,32C 1,28(C
Net operating loss carryforwar 7,652 7,46¢
Amortization 25¢ 29F
Fixed asset 36 56
Subtotal 8,87t 8,617
Valuation allowanct (8,875 (8,617

$ 0 $ 0

The Company has federal and state net operatisghrsyforwards of approximately $18,888,000 andl, 38,000, respectively, at
December 31, 2004. These federal and state neatopetoss carryforwards will begin to expire in2Z20and 2005, respectively. During
the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company H#dr@ia net operating loss carryforwards in thecamt of $933,530 expire. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, the Companeddrack its December 31, 2001 federal net operédsgyof $4,181,000 to the year
ended December 31, 1996 resulting in a refund @&1000. The carryback became allowable undepitn@sions of thelob Creation
and Workers Assistance Act of 200&jch extended the carryback period to five yearsdx years ending in 2001 and 2002. Net
operating losses, for federal purposes, were atidwdoe carried back for two years prior to thiagment. In addition, the Company has
federal and state tax credit carryforwards of apionately $1,104,000 and $216,000, respectivelfpetember 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, a valuation allowanceppiraximately $8,875,000 has been provided based timpCompany’s assessment
that it is more likely than not that sufficient &dbte income will not be generated to realize thebienefits of these temporary differences.

The increases in the valuation allowance for 208 2003 includes $1,710,000 and $729,000, respdgtirelated to the increases in the
Company’s Net Operating Loss Carryforwards as altre$ tax deductions derived from the exercisstotk options. Cumulatively, as of
December 31, 2004, approximately $3,351,000 of/gheation allowance was attributable to such paaktax benefit of stock option
transactions that will be credited directly to dttdial paid in capital, if realized.
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6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases The Company has non-cancelable operating leasés building facility in Aliso Viejo, Californiaand Lee’s Summit, Missouri,
which expire in May 2009 and June 2005, respegtivialture minimum rental commitments consist offdiwing (in thousands):

Year ending December 3

2005 $ 38¢
2006 38C
2007 38C
2008 38C
2009 15€
Total $ 1,68¢

Total rent expense was $480,000, $590,000 and $3930r the years ended December 31, 2004, 2002@02|, respectively.

Litigation — From time to time the Company is subject toditign in the normal course of business, none otlwhianagement believes
will likely have a material adverse effect on then@pany’s consolidated financial condition or reswit operations.

Other Contingent Contractual ObligationdDuring its normal course of business, the Comparsyrhade certain indemnities,
commitments and guarantees under which it may dpginedd to make payments in relation to certainda@tions. These include:
intellectual property indemnities to the Compamistomers and licensees in connection with thesae,and/or license of Company
products; indemnities to various lessors in corinaawith facility leases for certain claims arisiftgm such facility or lease; indemnities
to vendors and service providers pertaining tawsabased on the negligence or willful miscondudhefCompany; indemnities involvi
the accuracy of representations and warrantiesriiaio contracts; and indemnities to directors @fffiders of the Company to the
maximum extent permitted under the laws of theeStdDelaware. In addition, the Company has madéractual commitments to
employees providing for severance payments upondberrence of certain prescribed events. The Cagnpay also issue a guarante
the form of a standby letter of credit as secuidtycontingent liabilities under certain customentacts. The duration of these
indemnities, commitments and guarantees variesinacertain cases, may be indefinite. The majasftthese indemnities, commitments
and guarantees may not provide for any limitatibthe maximum potential for future payments the @any could be obligated to mal
The Company has not recorded any liability for hieglemnities, commitments and guarantees in tbemaganying consolidated balance
sheets.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company currently operates in two business eatgnproducts and services. In addition, reveaneslassified into two markets,
Wireless and OEM sales, and Internet and Direetss&@ur Internet market includes Internet basetivaoé products as well as
consulting, fulfillment and hosting revenue.

The Company does not separately allocate operatipgnses to these segments, nor does it allooatdisfassets to these segments.
Therefore, segment information reported includdg evenues and cost of revenues.

The following table shows the net revenues and @otvenues generated by each segment:

Year Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Products Services Products Services Products Services
Wireless & OEM $11,42¢ $ — $ 4,711 $ — $ 4,55¢ $ —
Internet & Direct 97C 922 1,58( 92t 1,47¢ 1,102
Total Revenue 12,39¢ 922 6,291 92t 6,02¢ 1,102
Cost of revenue 2,53( 38C 1,35(C 321 1,42 782
Gross Profii $ 9,86¢ $ 54z $ 4,941 $ 604 $ 4,60¢ $ 32

Sales to individual customers and their affiliatghjch amounted to more than 10% of the Compangtgevenues included one OEM
customer at 68.4% of revenues in 2004, three OEdbeouers at 27.0%, 10.7% and 10.2% of revenues@8 26d two OEM customers
19.0% and 10.7% of revenues in 2002. Accounts vabtg from these customers were $1.7 million atebdoer 31, 2004, $477,000,
$55,000 and $0 at December 31, 2003 and $516,aD8&at December 31, 2002. A decision by a sigaificustomer to substantially
decrease or delay purchases from the Company @dh®pany’s inability to collect receivables fronesle customers could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consaiifihancial condition and results of operations.

The Company also has export sales representing, 3.2%6 and 15.1% of its net revenues for the yeaded December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. All export sales have lsarominated in U.S. dollars.
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8. PROFIT SHARING

The Company offers its employees a 401(k) plamhich the Company matches the employee contrib@ianrate of 20%, subject to a
vesting schedule. Total employer contributions anted to $54,000, $45,000 and $45,000 for the yeraded December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In 1995, the Company adopted the 1995 Stock O@itock Issuance Plan (the Plan). The Plan, as ardepdavides for issuance of, or
options to be granted for the purchase of, an agdeeof 5,624,000 shares of common stock. Undetetines of the Plan, incentive and
nonqualified options may be granted at an exemmige not less than 100% and 85%, respectivelthefair market value on the grant
date, with terms of up to 10 years, and with vestimbe determined by the Board of Directors.

Stock option activity under the Plan is as follows:

Weighted

average

Number exercise

of options price

OUTSTANDING, January 1, 2002 (777,000 options, eisable at weighted average exercise price of $: 1,737,001 $ 2.5t

Granted (weighted average fair value of $0 1,176,001 0.3¢

Exercisec (3,000 1.01

Cancelec (145,000 1.3t
OUTSTANDING, December 31, 2002 (1,535,000 opti@srcisable at weighted average exercise price of

$2.15) 2,765,00! 1.4¢€

Granted (weighted average fair value of $2 38,00( 2.4¢

Exercisec (808,000) 1.1z

Cancelec (84,000 1.4
OUTSTANDING, December 31, 2003 (1,140,000 optiesxrcisable at weighted average exercise price of

$2.43) 1,911,001 1.62

Granted (weighted average fair value of $1 922,00( 1.9t

Exercisec (1,000,00) 2.0C

Cancelec (34,000 1.74

OUTSTANDING, December 31, 20( 1,799,00! 1.5¢
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Additional information regarding options ouatistling as of December 31, 2004 is as follows:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted

average Weighted Weighted
Range of remaining average average
exercise Number contractual exercise Number exercise

prices outstanding life (years) price exercisable price
$0.10-$ 0.90 566,00( 7.8 $ 0.2¢ 141,00( $ 0.3¢
$0.91-$ 1.80 213,00( 6.7 $ 1.0t 202,00( $ 1.0¢
$1.81-$ 2.70 883,00( 9.t $ 1.91 5,00( $ 1.8¢
$2.71-$ 7.10 84,00( 5.2 $ 3.4t 78,00( $ 341
$7.11- $14.00 53,00( 0.8 $ 8.9¢ 53,00( $ 8.9¢
1,799,00! 8.2 $ 1.5¢ 479,00( $ 212

10.

11.

At December 31, 2004, 1,448,000 shares were aVaifabfuture grants under the Stock Option Plan.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In October 2004, the Company entered into a M&téware Services Agreement with Arrange Technolog®, providing for the
development of certain software applications atelgration services. A member of the Company’s Badifdirectors is a principal
beneficial owner of Arrange Technology LLC. Durifiscal 2004, $19,000 was expensed under the teftie agreement, of which
$7,100 is included in accounts payable in the clidsted balance sheet at December 31, 2004.

In September 2004, the Company entered into a @eweragreement with a principal stockholder anchéorofficer and director of the
Company. The Company has discharged its obligatiater the agreement by purchasing a single preraiumity in the amount of
$192,000 which is included in general and admiafste expenses in the consolidated statement ahtipes for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 18, 2005, the Company entered intorartan Stock Purchase Agreement for the private piac¢ of 3,500,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock, $0.001 par value paica of $6.40 per share, resulting in aggregadsgicash proceeds to the Company
of $22,400,000 and approximate net cash proceettie t6ompany of $21,056,000. The transaction clggedltaneously with the
execution of the Purchase Agreement on Februarg2a@.

C.E. Unterberg, Towbin LLC, the placement agentliertransaction, received a cash fee equal tof@¥reaggregate gross proceeds of
the Private Placement.
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(In thousands)

Allowance for doubtful accounts and other adjusttaéh):
2004
2003
2002

(1) Other adjustments relate principally to sales redt

S-1

Balance at
beginning of
period

$ 33
56%
53¢

Additions
charged tc
costs and
expenses

$ 11z
132
48¢

Deductions

$ (8)
(664)
(454)

Balance a
end of
period

$ 137

33
56%
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Exhibit
No. Title Method of Filing
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatibthe Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the iRegnt’s
Registrant Registration Statement No.-95096.
3.1.1 Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certifichate o Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to tlegRtrant’s
Incorporation of the Registrant. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endigke 30,
2000.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the iRiegnt’s
Registration Statement No.-95096.
4.1 Specimen certificate representing shares of Com&took of Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the iRegnt's
the Registrani Registration Statement No.-95096.
10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thgiRgant's
Registration Statement No.-95096.
10.2* 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan as Amendéd an Incorporated by reference to the Appendix attadbetie

Restated through February 7, 2001.

Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2001 Annual Megtof
Stockholders filed on April 23
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Exhibit
No. Title Method of Filing
2001.

104 t Master Software License and Distribution Agreem(@untract Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thgiBant’s
No. 22(-00-0134) effective as of December 1, 2000, between Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
Cellco Partnership (d/b/a Verizon Wireless) andRlegistran 2003.

10.4.1t Amendment of Master Software License and Distrituti Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1.1 toRwegistrant’s
Agreement (Contract No. 220-00-0134) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
2003.
10.4.2t Amendment No. 2 to the Master Software License and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1.2 toRegistrant’s
Distribution Agreement (Contract No. 220-00-0134) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30,
2003.
14.1 Code of Ethics Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to thgiRgant's

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethde
December 31, 200:

14.1.1  Attachment 1 to Code of Ethics Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to thgiBeant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethde
December 31, 200:

21.1 Subsidiaries Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to thgiBeant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethde
December 31, 200!

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking. Filed herewitr

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Filed herewith
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Filed herewith
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer argetChief Filed herewith
Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of theb@aes-
Oxley Act of 200z

* Indicates management contract or compensatorygslamrangemen

t Confidential treatment has been granted withaessp certain confidential portions of this exhipirsuant to Rule 24b-2 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which confiderpiaitions have been omitted from the exhibit atetifseparately with the Securities
and Exchange Commissic



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement Nos. 333-02418, 333-40106 &3d62134 on Form S-8 of our report
dated March 30, 2005, relating to the financialesteents and financial statement schedule of SmithidvBoftware, Inc. appearing in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Smith Micro Softwahec. for the year ended December 31, 2004.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Costa Mesa, California
March 30, 2005



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

[, William W. Smith, Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fEmith Micro Software, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andgahoes, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regidts disclosure controls and procedures and predeém this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change inrdggistrant’s internal control over financial refig that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohmwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngiave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and matenedaknesses in the design or operation of interoratrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2005

By: /s/ William W. Smith, Jr.

William W. Smith, Jr.

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, Robert W. Scheussler, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fEmith Micro Software, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andgahoes, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regidts disclosure controls and procedures and predeém this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change inrdggistrant’s internal control over financial refig that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohmwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and matenedaknesses in the design or operation of interoratrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2005

By: /s/ Robert W. Scheussler
Robert W. Scheussler

Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CH IEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, in acoed with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted patsagection 906 of the Sarbar@sley
Act of 2002, in his capacity as an officer of Smificro Software, Inc., that, to his knowledge, thenual Report of Smith Micro Software,
Inc. on Form 10-K for the period ended December2804, fully complies with the requirements of $metl3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information cioré in such report fairly presents, in all mater@spects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the company.

March 30, 2005 By: /s/ William W. Smith, Jr.
William W. Smith, Jr.
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer (Principal Executive Office

March 30, 2005 By: /s/ Robert W. Scheussle
Robert W. Scheussle
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer

End of Filing
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